
 

 

MEETING: Overview and Scrutiny Committee - Full 
Committee - available on 
https://barnsley.public-i.tv/ 

DATE: Tuesday, 8 September 2020 

TIME: 2.00 pm 

VENUE: Held Virtually 

 
AGENDA 
 

Full Meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
All Members of the Committee Should Attend. 
 
Administrative and Governance Issues for the Committee 
 
1   Apologies for Absence - Parent Governor Representatives   

 
To receive apologies for absence in accordance with Regulation 7 (6) of the 
Parent Governor Representatives (England) Regulations 2001. 
 

2   Declarations of Pecuniary and Non-Pecuniary Interest   
 
To invite Members of the Committee to make any declarations of pecuniary and 
non-pecuniary interest in connection with the items on this agenda. 
 

3   Minutes of the Previous Meetings  (Pages 5 - 22) 
 
To approve the minutes of the following meetings of the Committee:- 
 

 12th May – Full Committee Meeting (Item 3a attached) 

 9th June – Thriving and Vibrant Economy Workstream (Item 3b attached) 

 9th July – People Achieving Their Potential Workstream (Item 3c attached) 

 21st July. – Strong and Resilient Communities Workstream (Item 3d attached) 
 

Overview and Scrutiny Issues for the Committee 
 
4   Barnsley Safeguarding Adults Board (BSAB) Annual Report 2019-20  (Pages 

23 - 44) 
 
To consider a report of the Executive Director Services (Item 4a attached) in 
respect of BSAB’s Annual Report (Item 4b attached). 
 

5   Barnsley Safeguarding Children Partnership (BSCP) Annual Report 2019-20  
(Pages 45 - 70) 
 
To consider a report of the Executive Director Core Services (Item 5a attached) in 
respect of BSAP’s Annual Report (Item 5b attached). 
 

6   Children’s Social Care Performance  (Pages 71 - 76) 
 
Redacted report provided for information only (Item 6) 
 

7   Exclusion of the Public and Press   
 

Public Document Pack



 

The public and press will be excluded from this meeting during consideration of 
the items so marked because of the likely disclosure of exempt information as 
defined by the specific paragraphs of Part I of Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972 as amended, subject to the public interest test. 
 

8   Children’s Social Care Performance  (Pages 77 - 124) 
 
To consider a cover report relating to Children’s Social Care Performance (Item 
8a) in relation to the Data Report (Item 8b) and the Explanatory Document (Item 
8c). 
 

 Reason restricted:  
Paragraph (2) Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual.  

Enquiries to Anna Marshall, Scrutiny Officer 
 
Email scrutiny@barnsley.gov.uk 
 

mailto:scrutiny@barnsley.gov.uk


 

 
 
To: Chair and Members of Overview and Scrutiny Committee:- 
 

Councillors Ennis OBE (Chair), Bowler, Carr, T. Cave, Clarke, Felton, Fielding, 
Frost, Gollick, Green, Daniel Griffin, Hand-Davis, Hayward, Higginbottom, Hunt, 
W. Johnson, Leech, Lodge, Lofts, Makinson, McCarthy, Mitchell, Newing, Noble, 
Phillips, Pickering, Richardson, Smith, Stowe, Sumner, Tattersall, Williams, Wilson 
and Wraith MBE together with Statutory Co-opted Member Ms. G Carter (Parent 
Governor Representative) 
 
Electronic Copies Circulated for Information 
Sarah Norman, Chief Executive 
Shokat Lal, Executive Director Core Services 
Rob Winter, Head of Internal Audit and Risk Management 
Michael Potter, Service Director, Business Improvement and Communications 
Martin McCarthy, Service Director, Governance, Members and Business Support 
Press 
 
Witnesses 
Item 4: 2.00pm 

 Bob Dyson, Independent Chair, BSAB  

 Wendy Lowder, Executive Director – Adults & Communities, BMBC  

 Julie Chapman, Service Director – Adult Social Care & Health, BMBC  

 Cath Erine, Barnsley Safeguarding Adults Board Manager, BMBC  

 Cllr Jenny Platts, Cabinet Spokesperson – Adults & Communities, BMBC  

 Susan Brook, Designated Nurse Safeguarding Adults, Barnsley Clinical 
Commissioning Group (CCG)  

 Chief Superintendent Sarah Poolman, Barnsley District Commander, 
South Yorkshire Police (SYP)  

 Becky Hoskins, Deputy Director of Nursing & Quality, Barnsley Hospital 
NHS Foundation Trust (BHNFT)  

 Emma Cox, Assistant Director of Nursing, Quality & Professions, 
SWYPFT 

  
Item 5: 2:45pm 

 Bob Dyson, Independent Chair, BSCP  

 Mel John-Ross, Executive Director, Children’s Services, BMBC  

 Debbie Mercer, Service Director, Children’s Social Care & Safeguarding, 
BMBC  

 Nigel Leeder, Barnsley Safeguarding Children Partnership Manager, 
BMBC  

 Cllr Margaret Bruff, Cabinet Spokesperson – Children’s Services  

 Chief Superintendent Sarah Poolman, Barnsley District Commander, 
South Yorkshire Police (SYP)  

 Tracy-Ann Taylor, Named Nurse Safeguarding Children, Barnsley 
Hospital NHS Foundation Trust (BHNFT)  

 Angela Fawcett, Designated Nurse Safeguarding Children and Looked 
After Children, Barnsley Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG)  

 Emma Cox, Assistant Director of Nursing, Quality & Professions, South 
West Yorkshire Partnership NHS Foundation Trust (SWYPFT) 



 

Item 8: 3:30pm 

 Debbie Mercer, Service Director, Children’s Social Care & Safeguarding, 
BMBC  

 Cllr Margaret Bruff, Cabinet Spokesperson – Children’s Services  

 Front-line Practitioners 
 

 
 



 

MEETING: Overview and Scrutiny Committee - Full 
Committee Meeting available virtually on 
https://barnsley.public-i.tv/ 

DATE: Tuesday, 12 May 2020 

TIME: 2.00 pm 

VENUE: HELD VIRTUALLY 
 

 

1 

 
MINUTES  
 
Present  Councillors Ennis OBE (Chair), Carr, Gollick, 

Higginbottom, Hunt, Lodge, Lofts, Makinson, Sumner, 
Tattersall and Wilson.  
 

  
  
 

20 Apologies for Absence - Parent Governor Representatives  
 
No apologies were received from Ms G. Carter in accordance with Regulation 7(6) of 
the Parent Governor Representatives (England) Regulations 2001. 
 

21 Declarations of Pecuniary and Non-Pecuniary Interest  
 
Councillors Makinson and Tattersall each declared a non-pecuniary interest in minute 
number 23 due to their positions on the board of Berneslai Homes. 
 

22 Minutes of the Previous Meetings  
 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the following meetings be approved as a true and 
correct record: 
Full Committee meeting held on 7th January, 2020; 
Thriving and Vibrant Economy Workstream meeting held on 4th February, 2020; 
People Achieving Their Potential Workstream meeting held on 10th March, 2020. 
 

23 Covid-19 Response  
 
The following witnesses were welcomed to the meeting:- 
Cllr Sir Steve Houghton, Leader 
Sarah Norman, Chief Executive 
Julia Burrows, Director of Public Health. 
 
A presentation was provided to Members which highlighted the following points:- 
 
There had been 174 Covid-19 related absences, with 163 of these due to staff self-
isolating but unable to work and 11 with confirmed or suspected Covid-19. There 
were no concerns around absence.  As with most areas, there had been issues with 
the supply of PPE and this challenge remained. 
 
Patient flow from hospital and capacity in residential care did not present any issues.  
Nearly 2,100 tests for Covid-19 had been undertaken, but this did not include any 
figures for testing of residents done by Public Health England. 

Page 5

Item 3a



 

 
2 

 
A bereavement support service had been commissioned with 31 already taking 
advantage of this.  Health and wellbeing remained a priority and information on this 
subject had been regularly circulated to staff, Councillors and to residents. 
 
The Emergency Response Contact Centre had received almost 2,500 calls as of 11th 
May, and demand was currently able to be met.  63,000 letters were in the process of 
being distributed to vulnerable residents with those most vulnerable being prioritised. 
Where no contact could be made, this would be followed up by telephone, and in 
person if required. 
 
Work continued with children known to social care with contact being maintained 
often via the use of technology, and statutory timescales being met as a minimum.  
Schools and early years settings were being supported to remain open to key 
workers and young people considered vulnerable, however numbers of the latter 
attending were not as high as would be ideal. 
 
In relation to critical frontline services, crematorium, mortuary and funeral capacity 
was adequate and there were no areas of concern. 
 
Green waste collection had been paused, but all other waste continued to be 
collected, with arisings around 20% above that seen at the same time last year.  
Household Waste Recycling Centres had recently reopened, which had gone well, 
with social distancing being observed. 
 
Essential highways safety work continued, as did emergency repairs to Berneslai 
Homes property, however routine maintenance had paused. 
 
£38.15m of grants had been distributed to almost 3,500 businesses, with nearly 
1,200 enquiries received by Enterprising Barnsley. Regulatory Services had been 
working with Enterprising Barnsley to support businesses with their reopening in line 
with advice as lockdown eased.  The Employment Support Helpdesk dealt with 46 
enquiries on issues such as benefit claims, and support for those in furlough. 
 
An economic assessment had been commissioned in order to understand the impact 
on businesses and retail in more detail. 
 
With regards to the financial position, it was noted that the Council had increased 
costs and a loss of income.  The current estimate was that total costs were in the 
region of £40m with £15m being received from Government.  This left a net cost of 
£25m to the authority. 
 
A strategy for recovery and renewal is in place, which will focus around the following 
5 areas; Health and Wellbeing, Business and Economy; Building Resilience; 
Education and Attainment; and Environment and Infrastructure. 
 
Thanks were given to the work of all staff in the current situation, and the need for 
ongoing change was acknowledged, given the impact of Covid-19 would be seen 
over the longer term. 
 

Page 6



 

 
3 

Questions were invited and challenge provided from Members.  In the ensuing 
discussion the following points were noted:- 
 
In relation to the questions about whether Area Teams could have coordinated 
community responders sooner, Members heard how initial efforts concentrated on 
those most vulnerable who were on the shielding list.  Area Teams had assisted in 
the mapping of support in each area. Unsure of demand, decisions were made for 
responders to prioritise those on the shielding list in the first instance.  As the 
situation progressed and anticipated demand was known, a shift was made to make 
more widespread use of community responders.  It was acknowledged that there 
would always be lessons learned, and the Area Teams played a crucial role in 
assessing the impact locally of Covid-19 and would be important in the recovery 
phase. 
 
In relation to support for communities in Barnsley such as Worsborough that had 
been highlighted as one of the most at-risk post Covid-19, Members heard that 
issues faced in this community were seen in areas throughout the borough.  
Recovery presented a challenge and it was noted that the economy was a key focus 
in the recovery plan. The Council was working with Sheffield City Region to plan for 
recovery on a county wide basis, with Government indicating that they wish for 
economic issues to be considered at this geography.  However, there will be a 
Barnsley wide plan that feeds into sub-regional plans, and Members were reminded 
of the economic impact assessment commissioned to inform this.  The role of Area 
Councils in delivery at a more local level was also acknowledged. 
 
Noted was the unclear situation in relation to finance from Government and Members 
heard of lobbying taking place to make the case for shortfalls to be addressed, and 
additional resources to aid recovery. 
 
Members questioned what the challenges in relation to children and education were, 
and those present heard that services remain operational, with statutory processes 
for those most vulnerable being delivered. Visits and reviews had been undertaken, 
with these taking place virtually where possible, and meetings such as the Fostering 
Panel and Adoption Panel had been also continued.   
 
In relation to support for the workforce, Members were reminded of the daily bulletin 
for staff and Councillors which highlighted support for staying well at home.  This 
included e-learning modules and advice on healthy lifestyles.  The ‘Well at work’ 
intranet site was accessible and counselling support was still available through 
Occupational Health, with this being provided virtually. 
 
The importance of ensuring staff health had been stressed with Managers asked to 
keep in touch with their staff daily.  In addition, a Wellbeing Pulse Survey had been 
conducted to further understand the stresses and strains faced by staff and 
Councillors. 
 
In relation to the disproportionate impact of Covid-19 on men and on those from more 
deprived areas nationally, it was noted that very detailed information was not 
available for Barnsley but only just over half of deaths in the borough were male.  
Almost 75% of deaths were seen in those aged over 75 and with long term health 

Page 7



 

 
4 

issues.  It was noted that all health issues impacted disproportionately on those with 
health problems and those from deprived areas. 
 
In relation to concerns about contact tracing, it was noted that phone apps will play a 
part in this, but much of this will be human focused.  Though current arrangements 
suggested much of this may be done nationally, Directors of Public health were keen 
to shape how this may happen locally. 
 
With reference to concerns about Covid-19 in care homes, Members heard how 
approximately 75% of care homes in Barnsley were Covid-19 free, and that 2/3rd of 
deaths in Barnsley were in hospital with just under 1/3rd in care homes.  Work had 
been undertaken with the residential care sector to ensure adequate supplies of PPE 
and their appropriate use. Training in infection control had also been provided.  
Financial support had been made available to ensure resilience with staffing support 
also provided where necessary.  Whilst support had also been provided for those 
providing domiciliary care, Members heard that the challenge had not been as great 
as that seen in care homes. 
 
In relation to discharge from hospital, tests were undertaken to ensure those 
discharged were free of Covid-19 and efforts were made to ensure patients were 
discharged to homes without the infection. 
 
With regards to testing for care workers, Members noted that after some time a 
system that works well was finally in place. Care workers could go to the testing 
facility at the hospital or could telephone for a testing kit to be posted to them. 
 
Concerns were raised about the school meals voucher scheme, and assurances 
were given that the issues previously seen with the system had now been resolved 
and it was working well for Barnsley parents. 
 
When questioned about the main challenges going forward, it was acknowledged 
that this was different from a crisis event such as flooding and would be ongoing for 
the immediate and medium-term future.  It was acknowledged that delivering public 
services effectively in this period and managing public expectations would be 
challenging. Working to drive forward recovery considering the financial situation and 
weak local economy also presented a significant challenge.  
 
Members also heard how it would be imperative to retain some of the benefits seen 
such as the time saved and reduction in traffic from holding virtual meetings. It was 
also hoped some of the strengths such as an increase in neighbourhood support, 
and the numbers volunteering could be maintained. 
 
Noting issues with public transport, active travel was discussed and though details of 
a £250m Emergency Travel Fund were unclear, it was an area that would be 
explored.  Members also noted that discussions were also taking place with SYPTE 
to reopen the Active Travel Hub. 
 
In relation to the impact of Covid-19 on the Glassworks scheme it was noted that a 
detailed report would be considered by Cabinet at the end of the month.  Due to 
social distancing measures, there had been delays to construction.  The was a 

Page 8



 

 
5 

potential impact on leasing and discussions were taking place with tenants, with 
preliminary feedback positive. 
 
In relation to the support for businesses and ensuring compliance, key advice was 
available on the Enterprising Barnsley website and Regulatory Services had been 
proactive in contacting food premises who had diversified to provide a takeaway 
service.  Where the public had concerns, businesses had been contacted and advice 
given, which had generally been welcomed with additional action only taken twice. 
 
Members questioned the impact of schools such as Horizon not being open, it was 
noted that since Easter it had reopened with a small number of students now 
attending.  Assurances were provided that the Council worked closely with all 
schools through Barnsley Alliance to ensure that the needs of the most vulnerable 
children were met. 
 
The need to understand the impact of children being taught at home, rather than 
school, was acknowledged with this forming a key part of the impact assessment and 
work undertaken with Barnsley Schools Alliance. Anecdotally it was suggested those 
adversely affected could include children of families working from home with little 
spare time, as well as those without access to online learning, though ASOS had 
supported the latter with donated laptops. 
 
In relation to the restoration of other formal Council meetings, Members noted that 
there were plans for the Annual Council to take place in October. It was proposed 
that the Mayor would be elected to office for the following 18 months.  Plans were 
also in place to reinstate the Area Councils over the course of the next few weeks. 
 
RESOLVED:- 

(i) That thanks be given for the presentation and responses to questions. 
(ii) That Members be kept informed of the outcome of the impact 

assessment work and the development of recovery plans going 
forward. 

 
 
 
 
 

------------------------------------------ 
Chair 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



 

MEETING: Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 
Thriving and Vibrant Economy Workstream 
- available virtually on 
https://barnsley.public-i.tv/ 

DATE: Tuesday, 9 June 2020 

TIME: 2.00 pm 

VENUE: VIRTUAL 
 

 

1 

Item 3b 

 
MINUTES  
 
Present  Councillors Ennis OBE (Chair), Gollick, Hunt, Lofts and 

Sumner,  Pickering, Clarke, Green, Hunt, Richardson 
and Noble. 

  
  
 

24 Apologies for Absence - Parent Governor Representatives  
 
No apologies/Apologies for absence were received in accordance with Regulation 
7(6) of the Parent Governor Representatives (England) Regulations 2001. 
 

25 Declarations of Pecuniary and Non-Pecuniary Interest  
 
There were no declarations of pecuniary or non-pecuniary interest. 
 

26 Minutes and Notes of Previous Meetings  
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 12th May 2020 were received. 
 

27 Impact of Covid-19 on the Barnsley Economy and Glass Works Development  
 
The following witnesses were welcomed to the meeting:   
 

 Matt Gladstone, Executive Director - Place Directorate 

 David Shepherd, Service Director, Economic Regeneration & Culture, 
Place Directorate 

 Councillor Tim Cheetham, Cabinet Spokesperson - Place Directorate 
 
A presentation regarding the report of the Executive Director Core Services and the 
Executive Director Place regarding the Impact of COVID-19 on the Barnsley 
Economy and Glass Works Development was delivered to Members. 
  
Key items to note included: 
  
£39m in grants has been distributed to 3500 businesses to date, with an additional 
£2.3m of discretionary grants in progress.  Economic modelling scenarios indicate 
that in the ‘worst’ case scenario the economy in Barnsley is predicted to contract by 
15%, with a 7% contraction for a ‘medium’ case scenario and an associated impact 
on jobs, businesses and GDP. 
 

Page 11



 

 
2 

Five key priority areas have been identified for recovery:  sectoral business support; 
retail and urban centres; digital campus; commercial property and the Market.   
 
In terms of the employment and skills priority, it is likely that there will be increasing 
volumes of high unemployment, insecure work and in-work poverty, with older 
workers (50+) and new entrants to the labour market most likely to be impacted.  
Plans are in place to address these areas and to develop new skills and resilience in 
the workforce to keep pace with technology and business process re-engineering.   
 
The Glass Works experienced temporary suspension of work in line with Government 
guidance, with an exemplary phased return to work from 6th April.  Productivity is now 
back to almost 80% productivity but there will be an inevitable impact, with opening 
moved out by a couple of months to Autumn 2021.   
  
Existing signed tenants are actively working with the Council to mitigate impacts and 
along with incoming tenants have stated their continued commitment to the scheme, 
with plans for social distancing in place.  New tenants are also coming on board.  Cllr 
Cheetham gave credit to officers and partners, particularly Henry Boot, in reaffirming 
commitment to the scheme and planning for recovery.  Weekly discussions take 
place with Government around the recovery, in which the Sheffield City Region 
(SCR) is also playing a key role. 
  
Members carefully considered the report and presentation, providing challenge 
through detailed questioning.  In the ensuing discussion the following points were 
raised: - 
 
Over 60% of the scheme by lettable area is currently let or in solicitors’ hands, with 
further lettings expected and several leads being actively followed up, particularly on 
the ‘food’ side in terms of restaurants etc, with interest in part raised due to the 
signing of key leisure providers such as Cineworld and Superbowl.  Several retailers 
have already approached the Council about future lettings and reserve plans are in 
place.  The leasing strategy is being revised, with back up plans for potential vacant 
space in the scheme is being considered for high quality cultural space, education 
space and working with health care partners, building on the success of the Library at 
the Lightbox, which has proven to be a highly innovative scheme which has drawn 
people in. Members will be provided with financial information in relation to the 
current income secured and the overall income forecast for the scheme. The Council 
remains committed to letting further space in the Glass Works on a commercial basis 
and ensuring income maximisation remains a key driver of the leasing strategy as the 
scheme moves towards completion in late 2021.  Members will be provided with 
financial information in relation to the current income secured and the overall income 
forecast for the scheme.  The Council remains committed to letting further space in 
the Glass Works on a commercial basis and ensuring income maximisation remains 
a key driver of the leasing strategy as the scheme moves towards completion in late 
2021. 
  
All signed tenancy agreements have been reviewed with assurances given that even 
in the worst-case scenarios, 'long stop' dates will be met to ensure exit clauses are 
not invoked.  Where timescales have been tight, personal discussions have taken 
place with operators with extensions to dates agreed which have been followed up 
with legal agreements.   

Page 12



 

 
3 

  
Discussions have taken place with operators who have signed agreements around 
their plans moving forward, incorporating concerns about insolvency and what will 
happen when the ‘furlough’ scheme comes to an end.  To date no difficulties have 
been identified.  There is a lot of volatility on the High Street nationally, with many big 
names folding in the restaurant sector but with others waiting to bring forward new 
formats etc.  A number of operators, including those in the leisure sector, have 
expressed an interest in bringing forward a ‘family oriented’ scheme for the 
Glassworks and which is appropriate for Barnsley.  This is unlikely to change.  
Operators such as casinos and purely drinking establishments will not fit within the 
family market which is being pursued.  The local demographic is vitally important to 
the Glassworks and may mean that Barnsley bounces back sooner than expecting, 
with people staying locally for retail and leisure opportunities rather than travelling 
further afield. 
   
There has been volatility in the cinema market particularly in terms of share price.  
Cineworld was initially affected but the company share price has now rallied and 
long-term plans are in place to bring forward socially distanced cinema across the 
world.  Cineworld continues to be a strong worldwide operator and has reaffirmed 
commitment to Barnsley, viewing Barnsley as a great opportunity as there are 
340,000 potential customers in the Barnsley catchment area without competition.  
Offers from other cinema providers have been turned down.  Members were 
reassured that by the time the Glassworks opens, Cineworld will have very slick 
arrangements in place having learned from the experience of the global lockdown 
easing. 
  
GDP is not an effective ‘stand-alone’ measure of the economic impact of Covid 19, 
as in some instances as it can mask the impact of job losses and business closures.  
This is why economic impact is measured in a variety of ways, not just GDP.  Plans 
are being developed to address the impact on employment, but the priority at the 
start of the crisis was to put £40m into Barnsley's business bank accounts whilst 
ensuring all businesses had access to high quality advice through Enterprising 
Barnsley (both online and over the phone) together with specific employment support 
advice (Tom Smith).  Recovery plans are aligned to SCR plans to ensure recovery 
across the region as a whole. 
 
Companies who have been identified as ‘at risk’ of job losses are being tracked 
through the ‘Gold’ arrangements.  Inward investment enquiries continue to come in 
and Barnsley has been praised for not using Covid 19 as an excuse.  Henry Boot 
only paused for a couple of weeks and along with many other companies were soon 
back up and running with social distancing in place to ensure safety.   
 
Although it has been suggested that there could be as many as 2000 job losses in 
Barnsley, this is from other parties’ economic modelling.  Barnsley is not predicting 
the number of possible job losses but rather attention is focussed on supporting 
specific sectors such as a strong construction sector, hotel, retail, hospitality and 
leisure sectors and ensuring they are able to move forward.  The 2008 recession saw 
lots of new jobs in the retail and hospitality sector, which may (or may not) happen 
again.  There is a recognition that there is a need to support local employers now and 
supported employment schemes are being actively explored across all sectors.  The 
Future Jobs Fund model has been problematic in relation to private sector 

Page 13



 

 
4 

engagement, but this is now further considered in conjunction with SCR although 
there are some technicalities to face.  
 
DMC2 is working with Barnsley College and Sheffield Hallam University around the 
digital jobs’ agenda, both for now and planning for the future.  Tech businesses are 
connecting with local businesses to plan for the future together, which will have a 
significant positive impact across the Borough.    
 
Apprenticeships are highly valued in Barnsley, with performance higher than the 
Yorkshire and Humber average.  There is a degree of potential risk, but Barnsley 
College and other providers are working together to ensure there will be a good offer 
for the new academic year in September for current Year 11 students.   
  
A report has been prepared and a press statement issued regarding a review of 
Barnsley Markets, encompassing rental agreements, flexible arrangements, use of 
artwork, and other lessons learned, particularly from the Market Kitchen.  The review 
highlighted the importance of the Market Kitchen in the recovery, as this acts as a 
key footfall driver and was doing well before the lockdown.   
 
Market Traders have been involved in discussions around the recovery 
arrangements.  Further lessons will be learned from Monday when ‘non- essential’ 
traders will be able to open in a safe and managed way.  Intuitive signage and social 
distancing measures and advice will be in place.  Officers are in touch with the 
Market Traders Federation and have asked for interested traders to come forward to 
be part of a steering group which is being set up.   
 
RESOLVED that: 
 

(i) Officers be thanked for their attendance at the meeting, their hard work and 
contribution to driving forward the recovery of Barnsley from the Covid-19 
pandemic; 
 

(ii) Thanks be extended to staff who had worked hard to ensure the smooth 
running and public webcasting of the meeting; 

  
(iii) Members will be provided with financial information in relation to the current 

income secured and the overall income forecast for the scheme.  

(iv) Markets report will be provide with a redacted version of the Markets review 
report. 

 
 
 
 

------------------------------------------ 
Chair 

Page 14



 

MEETING: Overview and Scrutiny Committee - People 
Achieving Their Potential Workstream 

DATE: Thursday, 9 July 2020 

TIME: 2.00 pm 

VENUE: THIS MEETING WILL BE HELD 
VIRTUALLY - https://barnsley.public-
i.tv/core/portal/home 

 

 

1 

Item 3c 

 
MINUTES  
 
Present  Councillors Ennis OBE (Chair), Hayward, Lodge, 

Makinson, Newing, Tattersall, Williams, Lofts and 
Stowe. 

  
  
 

28 Apologies for Absence - Parent Governor Representatives  
 
No apologies for absence were received in accordance with Regulation 7(6) of the 
Parent Governor Representatives (England) Regulations 2001. 
 

29 Declarations of Pecuniary and Non-Pecuniary Interest  
 
There were no declarations of pecuniary or non-pecuniary interest. 
 

30 Minutes of the Previous Meeting  
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 9th June were noted. 
 

31 Impact of COVID-19 on Adult Social Care and Care Homes In Barnsley  
 
The following witnesses were welcomed to the meeting: 

 Wendy Lowder, Executive Director Adults and Communities, BMBC 

 Sharon Graham, Head of Service – Commissioning, BMBC 

 Julie Chapman, Service Director – Adult Social Care and Health, BMBC 

 Cllr Jenny Platts, Cabinet Spokesperson – Adults & Communities, BMBC 

 Emma White, Health & Wellbeing Principal, Adults & Communities, BMBC 

 Jane Sivakumar, Chief Nurse, Barnsley CCG  

 Gill Stansfield, Deputy District Director General Community, SWYPFT 
 
A report was received to inform the Committee of the local authority’s recent 
submission to government outlining Barnsley’s system wide offer to care homes as 
part of the response to COVID 19. 
 
It was noted Barnsley care homes support over 1,800 residents across 72 homes. A 
large number of homes are occupied by elderly residents who are classed as 
vulnerable to COVID 19, as such the need to wrap those homes with support is 
essential in response to the COVID 19 outbreak. 
 

Page 15



 

 
2 

It was recognised that the Council and partner agencies have worked flat out over 
the past few months to keep the borough’s care homes as safe as possible, as well 
as themselves. 
 
The collective heart felt sympathies of all present were expressed to the families who 
have lost loved ones because of the crisis. 
 
A presentation was received to provide an update on how adult social care has been 
impacted in the wider sense. This provided further details in respect of: 

 the social work offer 

 directly provided services 

 adult joint commissioning 

 data and governance 

 the workforce 

 infection prevention control 

 community support 

 finances 
 
The Chair thanked the officers for their report and presentation. Members carefully 
considered the information and provided challenge through detailed questioning. In 
the ensuing discussion the following points were raised: 
 
It was noted the Care Home Plan references 72 care homes and queried whether 
this number represents all care homes or just those specialising in elderly care. It 
was confirmed this is all care homes in the borough, and that the same level of 
support is offered to all. 
 
It was questioned whether the salary uplift (discussed at BMBC Cabinet before the 
COVID pandemic) was now in place. It was confirmed this is in the process of being 
implemented in partnership with the various care home providers and is being 
worked through subject to consultation and agreement. 
 
Regarding infection prevention control; assurances were sought that all available 
grants are being received. It was confirmed this is the case and that 75% of the grant 
is being used to support care homes, whilst the remainder is being used on a flexible 
basis in discussion with the care home providers. The remaining 25% has been 
issued to home case providers. 
 
It was questioned whether potential seasonal variations were being planned for, 
particularly as we approach the winter months. The meeting was informed of what 
plans are in place for COVID and other conditions such a flu. It was noted flu 
vaccinations this year will be critical to help protect the health service and measure 
will be put in place to ensure as many people are vaccinated as possible, with the 
potential lowering of the age recommendation also an option. It was acknowledged it 
is difficult to predict when winter will start and therefore when to plan for. 
 
It was questioned whether any care homes are not participating in testing 
programmes or providing data. It was reported there are some understandable 
instances of homes having been worried about the stress of testing asymptomatic 
individuals. 
 

Page 16



 

 
3 

Regarding the gathering of data, it was reported that COVID had seen massive leaps 
forward in respect of data gathering and sharing and efforts will be made to ensure 
new processes benefit us going forward. It was noted a new data dashboard will be 
developed. 
 
It was asked whether family members visiting care home residents had been tested. 
It was confirmed this hadn’t been undertaken and noted homes closed their doors 
quite quickly to visitors. It was noted new guidance is being introduced regarding the 
safest means of relatives visiting residents. 

 
Regarding the permitting of family visits, it was noted a lot of work had been done to 
deploy equipment to facilitate virtual visiting, but each home would need to risk 
assess their environment to ensure visiting could recommence safely. It was 
suggested some homes may have the structural capability to utilise external doors to 
create safe environments. 
 
It was questioned what additional measures are being put in place to support people 
with dementia and other needs who perhaps rely on external ‘pampering’. It was 
noted these have stopped as a consequence of lockdown but many instances have 
been reported of staff providing additional support to residents to deliver these types 
of non-medical services. Officers reported on some amazing examples of creativity 
coming from the homes and the need to recognise the efforts of staff. 
  
The meeting considered the economic impacts of COVID and the danger we are 
nationally approaching a tipping point which will see private providers no longer able 
to generate a profit and leave the market. It was noted there have been a number of 
national, regional and local studies commissioned to investigate the risks and 
quantify the financial shortfall in the sector. A recent study by the LGA & ADASS 
identified that nationally  the home care / care homes & supported living sector were 
facing additional costs amounting to an estimated £1bn for extra staffing, £4bn for 
PPE equipment and £700m for increased cleaning. It was recognised there may be 
further societal changes of attitude to care homes that will need to be factored into 
the financial forecasts for the sector.  
 
The health of the adult social care finances of the borough was questioned. It was 
noted that at the last time of reporting this showed spend to be within the annual 
budget allocated , however, this precedes COVID and finances are likely to be 
reassessed  as the full  picture becomes known.   
 
The meeting discussed reported instances of some homes failing to provide an 
expected standard of care, both before and during the pandemic. It was 
acknowledged that whilst the vast majority of homes have responded brilliantly to 
new challenges some have been challenged. . It was confirmed that those homes 
which 'require improvement' under the Care Quality Commission ratings will continue 
to be worked with through quality assurance and improvement processes. 
 
The meeting discussed the role Members can play in lobbying for fair financial 
settlements. It was requested that a briefing note be produced to help inform those 
debates. 
 

Page 17



 

 
4 

Members placed on record their thanks to the officers and all health and social care 
sector staff engaged with supporting our care homes at this difficult time, and 
requested this be conveyed back to everyone. 
 
It was suggested there is hope that a benefit of the COVID pandemic will be 
improved working relationships between all health care sectors. 
 
RESOLVED that:  
 
(i) Officers be thanked for their attendance and contribution at the meeting; 
 
(ii) The Committee’s thanks be extended to officers and all health and social care 

sector staff in responding to the pandemic;  
  
(iii) Members support the promotion of the uptake of the flu vaccination across all 

our communities when the time comes as this will be critical in protecting 
individuals and services; 

  
(iv) A briefing note be produced on Adult Social Care costings so Members can 

utilise this to lobby for fair financial settlements. 
 
The Chair thanked everyone for their attendance 
 
 
 
 

------------------------------------------ 
Chair 

Page 18



 

MEETING: Overview and Scrutiny Committee - Strong 
and Resilient Communities Workstream -  
Available on https://barnsley.public-i.tv 

DATE: Tuesday, 21 July 2020 

TIME: 2.00 pm 

VENUE: THIS MEETING WILL BE HELD 
VIRTUALLY 

 

 

1 

Item 3d 

 
MINUTES  
 
Present  Councillors Ennis OBE (Chair), Carr, Fielding, 

Higginbottom, W. Johnson, Leech, Phillips, Wilson, 
Wraith MBE, Smith, Tattersall, Lodge and Hayward 
together with co-opted member Ms. G Carter 
 

  
  
 

11 Apologies for Absence - Parent Governor Representatives  
 
No apologies for absence were received in accordance with Regulation 7(6) of the 
Parent Governor Representatives (England) Regulations 2001. 
 

12 Declarations of Pecuniary and Non-Pecuniary Interest  
 
Councillor Tattersall declared a non-pecuniary interest in minute 14 in relation to her 
position on Berneslai Homes Board. 
 
Councillor Lodge declared a pecuniary interest in minute 14 in so far as discussion 
related to his employment for an organisation that delivers support accommodation 
across the borough. 
 

13 Minutes of the Previous Meeting  
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 9th July were received and noted. 
 

14 Community Safety in Barnsley and the Impact of COVID-19  
 
The following witnesses were welcomed to the meeting: - 
 
Councillor Jenny Platts – Cabinet Spokesperson, Adults and Communities; 
Wendy Lowder – Executive Director, Adults and Communities; 
Paul Brannan – Head of Safer Barnsley 
Chief Superintendent Sarah Poolman – South Yorkshire Police. 
 
Members were reminded of the importance of supporting communities to be safe, 
and for people to feel safe.  It was acknowledged that everyone had a part to play to 
ensure this.  Members heard how Barnsley was in a positive place with much work 
already undertaken. Community safety services were organised on a neighbourhood 
level, working in partnership to maximise the impact of resources. 
 

Page 19



 

 
2 

Members heard of the work of the Safer Barnsley Partnership, which focused around 
the four key delivery groups: - Tackling Crime; Protecting Vulnerable People; 
Tackling Anti-Social Behaviour; and Promoting Community Tolerance and Respect. 
 
In was acknowledged that since lockdown the services involved in delivering 
community safety had been collectively challenged, dealing with an unprecedented 
and unforeseen set of circumstances.  This not only impacted on how services were 
delivered, but also the expectations of people in relation to behaviour and levels of 
tolerance. 
 
In relation to recorded crime, within lockdown this reduced to approximately 40% of 
previously seen levels.  It was acknowledged that figures would not have included 
hidden or unreported crimes.  However, recorded crime had increased as restrictions 
begin to ease. 
 
A significant focus had been on tailoring approaches to those who may be at risk 
behind closed doors, such as from domestic abuse.  Targeted campaigns  had 
helped to increased awareness about access to support.  Despite this reporting had 
reduced. 
 
Antisocial behaviour (ASB) had seen a 20-30% increase during the lockdown period 
and this was attributed to a number of reasons including changes to regulations 
relating to covid-19 and therefore what residents would regard as acceptable 
behaviour. 
 
Patterns relating to ASB had also changed with incidences reducing in the town 
centre but increasing out in wards during lockdown.  Environmental crime, such as fly 
tipping increased during the lockdown period, which may have been attributed to 
people being at home more, together with a reduced offer in relation to waste 
management. 
 
Relationships between residents often altered during lockdown and Members heard 
how significant work had been undertaken to monitor the types of complaints 
received, with these often relating to breaching regulations such as residents having 
guests to their homes. With many residents being at home, there remains challenges 
around neighbourhood disputes. 
 
Members heard that the Police had responded proactively, engaging, explaining and 
encouraging, and only moving to enforcement when absolutely necessary.  There 
remained challenges in relation to managing the expectations of some who would 
like to see more enforcement.  In relation to Berneslai Homes properties, it was noted 
that some services had been withdrawn by the provider, and a corresponding impact 
had been seen.  However, this was due to be reinstated. 
 
In comparison to other areas in South Yorkshire it was noted that Barnsley compared 
favourably with ASB rates significantly lower than neighbouring areas.  Although this 
was now increasing, Barnsley remained in a relatively strong position. 
 
Members were assured that services were aware of the challenges going forward, 
and responses would take these into account going forward. 
 

Page 20



 

 
3 

Questions were invited from Members and in the ensuing discussion and challenge, 
the following points were raised: - 
 
Praise was given in relation to recent operations to discourage motorbike use on the 
Trans-Pennine Trail, which had resulted in this problem being reduced.  However, 
speeding in residential areas remained an issue in many wards.  It was 
acknowledged that the Police continued to conduct proactive operations in areas of 
concern, but this was only one part of a more complex situation which included 
highway design and speed limits.  It was agreed that this situation be discussed in 
more detail with officers in the Place Directorate and also with the Safer Roads 
Partnership. 
 
In relation to fly-tipping and environmental crime, the impact of the temporary closure 
of household waste recycling centres was noted.  However, Members were also 
made aware of the impact of courts not being in session and the corresponding 
impact of the absence of a deterrent.  Members were also made aware of the 
restrictions in place which meant officers were unable to conduct interviews under 
caution, which halted the development of cases. 
 
Members raised the issue of ASB, which had been escalated in a number of areas 
such as in Bank End.  This had been reported but remained an issue.  It was 
suggested that this had been exacerbated as individuals migrated from open to more 
residential spaces.  However, issues in open spaces such as within Cudworth Park 
did remain. 
 
Reassurances were given that the Safer Neighbourhood Service teams were now 
working more proactively to address issues such as this.  Concerns were expressed 
regarding the level of involvement from Berneslai Homes.  Incidences of ASB in 
Berneslai Homes properties were discussed, and Members felt that some issues may 
be avoided through Berneslai Homes having a more robust lettings policy. 
The need for multi-agency approach was acknowledged and it was noted that some 
Members did have local multi-agency meetings to consider these types of issues and 
discuss appropriate local responses.  Officers acknowledged the importance of 
Members in providing intelligence and feedback from their communities. 
 
Concerns about the provision of CCTV in certain areas was discussed, and Members 
heard how CCTV coverage was more extensive than previously, with high streets 
and principal towns linked to a central control centre.  It was noted that CCTV 
provision had to be provided within the current financial constraints. 
 
Ensuring residents feel safe was discussed, and it was noted that one of the sub-
groups of the Safer Barnsley Partnership would be considering feelings and 
perceptions in light of Covid-19, and how best to improve these.  Those present 
noted the constraints placed on the Police in relation to enforcement of Covid-19, 
with the ability to enforce eroded as lockdown lifted. 
 
The importance of communications was acknowledged, with a number of Members 
feeling that the recent information provided on Covid-19 testing was confusing. 
 
Members expressed concerns regarding young people and crime, and questions 
were raised as to whether young people had been drawn into crime during the 

Page 21



 

 
4 

lockdown period.  It was suggested that quarter one figures may shed more light on 
this, but that it was more likely that young people were involved in ASB which had 
increased. 
 
Challenges were made around how the Safer Barnsley Partnership involved the 
wider community in establishing priorities.  It was noted that extensive consultation 
was undertaken, with over 1,600 responses received. These were reflected in the 
published partnership plan. 
 
Members raised concerns in relation to drug dealing and the response from 101 
when reporting this.  Those present heard that more warrants had been issued in 
relation to drugs in the past year than the previous three years, but this was an 
ongoing issue.  Members were encouraged to continue to provide intelligence in 
relation to this issue. 
 
Questions were asked about the rates of suicide and whether there had been an 
increase over the lockdown period.  In response it was highlighted that mental health 
had been affected due to lockdown, and it was suggested that people were waiting 
for symptoms to become more acute before seeking help.  This issue was due to be 
considered by the Senior Management Team imminently. 
 
RESOLVED:- 

(i) That thanks be given for the attendance and contribution from all the 
witnesses; 

(ii) That, in relation to the concerns of Members about road safety, the 
Executive Director, Adults and Communities, on behalf of the Safer 
Communities Partnership, discusses the issue with the Executive 
Director, Place, and the Safer Roads Partnership with a view to 
enabling a multi-agency response in problematic areas where this is 
possible; 

(iii) That feedback be provided to Communications and Public Health in 
relation to the need to ensure that communications in relation to Covid-
19 testing is easy to understand; and 

(iv) That concerns in relation to the Berneslai Homes and their proactive 
involvement in addressing issues of ASB, and the robustness of their 
lettings policy be raised with appropriate officers. 

 
 
 
 

------------------------------------------ 
Chair 

Page 22



 

1 

 

 
Report of the Executive Director Core Services  
to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee (OSC)  

on 8 September 2020 
 

Barnsley Safeguarding Adults Board (BSAB) Annual Report 2019-20 - Cover Report 
 

1.0 Introduction and Background 
 
1.1 Local Safeguarding Adults Boards are a statutory requirement of the Care Act 2014 

and require organisations to come together to agree on how they will cooperate with 
each other to safeguard and promote the welfare of adults. The Barnsley Safeguarding 
Adults Board (BSAB) has been operating since 2000 but was originally known as the 
Adult Protection Committee. The Care Act gives the Board the power to place a “duty 
to enquire” on statutory partners (Local Authority, the Police and the NHS Clinical 
Commissioning Group) agencies to progress safeguarding enquiries. 
 

1.2 The Government recognised that even though local authorities had been responsible 
for adult safeguarding for a number of years, there had never been any clear laws to 
support this. Therefore, under the Care Act 2014 there was a statutory responsibility 
for SABs to be in place from April 2015, enabling local partnership working amongst 
key organisations to hold each other to account and to ensure safeguarding adults 
remains high on the agenda across the area. The Care Act 2014 recognises that local 
authorities alone cannot safeguard individuals but requires joint-working with other 
agencies supported by increasing the awareness of adult safeguarding amongst the 
wider public. 
 

1.3 The BSAB is a multi-agency Board comprising statutory, independent, voluntary 
organisations and service user/carer representation which have a stakeholder interest 
in safeguarding adults. The Board believes that everyone has a right to feel safe and 
to live without fear of abuse, neglect or exploitation. The Board’s priority is to protect 
adults who live in the borough, promote their wellbeing and reduce the risk of harm for 
those with care and support needs.  

 
2.0 Current Position 
 
2.1 The BSAB Annual Report 2019-20 (Item 4b - attached) outlines the work of the Board 

and its local and regional partners from April 2019 to March 2020. Key achievements 
during this time include: 

 

 The production of a leaflet for use by workers and volunteers to help adults 
understand the safeguarding journey and who to contact with concerns 

 Joint working to share ideas; the creation of a health passport for any adult who 
may need support to access health care; work around the increased risk of abuse 
faced by adults who are lonely/socially isolated; and work around the learning 
disability strategy 

 An increase in the number of referrals as a result of regular publicity campaigns 

 Training delivered to over 120 workers, and 140 staff attended two self-neglect 
learning events to explore how to work with adults who self-neglect/hoard.  
Specialist training has also been delivered to adult social care staff, BIADS 
Dementia Service and to South West Yorkshire Partnership Foundation Trust 
(SWYPFT) 

 Increased contact with the voluntary sector, with Barnsley Community & Voluntary 
Services (BCVS) now sitting on the Board and sub-groups 

Page 23

Item 4a



 

2 

 

 Data from regional and national sources are used to evaluate performance at least 
twice a year.  Quarterly data submitted by joint commissioning and partners to 
seek assurance and evidence that care provision and services in Barnsley are safe 
for adults who use them.  In addition, the Care Quality Commission (CQC) attend 
on an annual basis to share their findings about local care providers 

 Changes in policy as a result of the audit of self-neglect and hoarding as well as 
the management of People in Positions of Trust (PIPOT) cases 

 A highly successful Safeguarding Awareness Week (SAW) which involved schools; 
colleges; health; police and other partners to highlight support available to all 
residents of Barnsley to prevent and stop harm and abuse  

2.2 The report also shows BSAB’s plans for 2020-21, based on the four strategic priorities 

for the Board:- 

 Making Safeguarding Personal – supporting adults who have been abused to stop 
the harm and help them feel safe 

 Prevention - preventing abuse and neglect from taking place and supporting people 
to feel safer 

 Accountability – making sure safeguarding arrangements work effectively 

 Transitions – working with young people to reduce the risk of abuse as they 
become adults 

 
3.0 Covid-19 

3.1 Covid-19 did not impact on the work of the Board for the 2019-20 reporting period.  
The Board is pleased to report that:- 

 The Board and its sub-groups continued to meet throughout the lock down period 

 Active work to highlight the increased risks of scams etc. was completed by both 
BMBC and other partners’ communications teams 

 The independent chair was party to the weekly calls with the Chief Executive about 
Covid-19 

 Virtual training was delivered to front line workers 

 Links were maintained with safeguarding colleagues both locally, sub-regionally 
and regionally 

 The Board received updates from all partners about how they were continuing to 
keep adults safe and respond to allegations of abuse and neglect 

 Safeguarding data was closely monitored and appropriate action taken to address 
reductions in referrals 

 A development event for new Board members was held to maximise the 
effectiveness of the Board 

 The Board Chair and relevant partners have been fully briefed on the recent issues 
in a local care home 

 
4.0     Invited Witnesses  
 
4.1 At today’s meeting, a number of Board representatives have been invited to answer 

questions from the Overview and Scrutiny Committee regarding their work over the 
last annual reporting year (April 2019-March 2020), as well as work being undertaken 
currently and future plans:- 

 

 Bob Dyson, Independent Chair, BSAB 

 Wendy Lowder, Executive Director – Adults & Communities, BMBC 

 Julie Chapman, Service Director – Adult Social Care & Health, BMBC 

Page 24



 

3 

 

 Cath Erine, Barnsley Safeguarding Adults Board Manager, BMBC 

 Cllr Jenny Platts, Cabinet Spokesperson – Adults & Communities, BMBC 

 Susan Brook, Designated Nurse Safeguarding Adults, Barnsley Clinical 
Commissioning Group (CCG) 

 Chief Superintendent Sarah Poolman, Barnsley District Commander, South 
Yorkshire Police (SYP) 

 Becky Hoskins, Deputy Director of Nursing & Quality, Barnsley Hospital NHS 
Foundation Trust (BHNFT)  

 Emma Cox, Assistant Director of Nursing, Quality & Professions, SWYPFT 
 

5.0     Possible Areas for Investigation 
 
5.1 Members may wish to ask questions around the following areas: 
 

 How did the Covid-19 pandemic affect the number of safeguarding concerns 
reported, what action was taken, and what do the numbers look like now? 
 

 How has the Safeguarding Board been involved in the recent high-profile 
safeguarding issue in a local residential home? 
 

 Can you give an example of why someone would meet the three-stage test but 
would not progress to a section 42 enquiry, and what happens to those cases 
deemed to be ‘concern only’? 

 

 What area of work/performance is the Board most proud of over the last 12 months 
and what positive impact has this had on the safeguarding of local residents? 

 

 Are there any actions from last year that have not been achieved and if so, why 
not? 

 

 How effective is the joint-working between agencies to tackle and prevent domestic 
abuse, especially given the high-increase in arrests over recent months? 

 

 What lessons were learned from the case studies in the report and whose 
responsibility is it to ensure that the learning is applied in practice and shared 
across the system? 

 

 When will the audit on the interface between safeguarding and the homeless be 
complete? 

 

 When people self-neglect and continually miss appointments, how do health and 
social care work together to build a picture, ensuring that these individuals do not 
fall through the cracks? 

 

 How do you plan to increase community reporting of safeguarding concerns? 
 

 How confident are you that staff have the time and skills to be curious and 
persistent with individuals who may not initially want to engage? 

 

 How do you demonstrate that the Board is value for money? 
   

 How do you know whether the Board is effective and what are the barriers that may 
prevent it from being so? 

Page 25



 

4 

 

 

 What actions could be taken by Members to assist in the work of BSAB? 
 
6.0     Background Papers and Useful Links 

 

 BSAB Annual Report 2019-20 (Item 4b  - attached) 
 

 Barnsley Safeguarding Adults Board Website: 
https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/services/children-families-and-

education/safeguarding-families-in-barnsley/safeguarding-adults-in-

barnsley/barnsley-safeguarding-adults-board/  

 

 BSAB Safeguarding Adult Reviews – Lessons Learned 
https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/services/children-families-and-
education/safeguarding-families-in-barnsley/safeguarding-adults-in-
barnsley/barnsley-safeguarding-adults-board/safeguarding-adult-reviews-sars/  

 

 Making Safeguarding Personal – Local Government Association website 
https://www.local.gov.uk/our-support/our-improvement-offer/care-and-health-
improvement/making-safeguarding-personal  
 

 The Care Act Easy Read Summary:- 
https://inclusionnorth.org/uploads/attachment/600/care-act-easy-read-summary.pdf  

7.0     Glossary 

BCVS  Barnsley Community & Voluntary Services 
BHNFT Barnsley Hospital NHS Foundation Trust 
BIADS Barnsley Independent Alzheimer’s and Dementia Support 
BSAB  Barnsley Safeguarding Adults Board 
CCG  Clinical Commissioning Group 
CQC  Care Quality Commission 
MSP  Making Safeguarding Personal 
OSC  Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
PIPOT Persons in a Position of Trust 
SAFE  Barnsley Safeguarding Adults Forum by Experience 
SAR  Safeguarding Adults Review 
SAW  Safeguarding Awareness Week 
SWYPFT South West Yorkshire Partnership NHS Foundation Trust 
SYP   South Yorkshire Police 

 
8.0 Officer Contact 

 
Anna Marshall, Scrutiny Officer 
28 August 2020 

Page 26

https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/services/children-families-and-education/safeguarding-families-in-barnsley/safeguarding-adults-in-barnsley/barnsley-safeguarding-adults-board/
https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/services/children-families-and-education/safeguarding-families-in-barnsley/safeguarding-adults-in-barnsley/barnsley-safeguarding-adults-board/
https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/services/children-families-and-education/safeguarding-families-in-barnsley/safeguarding-adults-in-barnsley/barnsley-safeguarding-adults-board/
https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/services/children-families-and-education/safeguarding-families-in-barnsley/safeguarding-adults-in-barnsley/barnsley-safeguarding-adults-board/safeguarding-adult-reviews-sars/
https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/services/children-families-and-education/safeguarding-families-in-barnsley/safeguarding-adults-in-barnsley/barnsley-safeguarding-adults-board/safeguarding-adult-reviews-sars/
https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/services/children-families-and-education/safeguarding-families-in-barnsley/safeguarding-adults-in-barnsley/barnsley-safeguarding-adults-board/safeguarding-adult-reviews-sars/
https://www.local.gov.uk/our-support/our-improvement-offer/care-and-health-improvement/making-safeguarding-personal
https://www.local.gov.uk/our-support/our-improvement-offer/care-and-health-improvement/making-safeguarding-personal
https://inclusionnorth.org/uploads/attachment/600/care-act-easy-read-summary.pdf


ANNUAL REPORT

2019  –  2020

BARNSLEY

SAFEGUARDING

ADULTS BOARD

CONTENTS

INDEPENDENT CHAIR’S FOREWORD
DEFINITIONS 
SAFEGUARDING ADULTS DATA 
CASE STUDIES 
PROGRESS ON ACTION 2019/20 STRATEGIC PLAN
BOARD BUDGET 2019/20
SAFEGUARDING ADULTS REVIEWS
KEY ACHIEVEMENTS
CASE STUDY
STRUCTURE OF THE BOARD
STRATEGIC PLAN – PLANS FOR 2020/21
OUR PARTNERS

1
2

2-6
7
8

10
11

11-13
13
14
15
16

P
age 27

Janemu
Text Box
Item 4b



I would like to thank you for taking an interest in the work of Barnsley’s Safeguarding Adult Board. As the Independent Chair, I am pleased to report
that there has been progress against the board’s objectives. Partner agencies continue to show their commitment to working together to keep
vulnerable adults safe.

Examples of positive work undertaken by the board include the public awareness raising, particularly during the Safeguarding Awareness Week,
which is considered to have contributed to the increase in safeguarding referrals coming from members of the public and by individuals themselves;
case audits leading to changes in policies including ‘Self Neglect and Hoarding’ and ‘People in Positions of Trust’; and the creation of a multi-agency
panel to look at high risk cases including young adults with more work planned with the Barnsley Safeguarding Children Partnership.

During the year that this report covers, there was one Safeguarding Adult Review, more details of which can be found on page 12  The review
confirmed to me that the partnership is keen to learn from cases and wants to improve the services that it provides to vulnerable people. I am
confident that the learning points will be actioned. It also confirmed to me that front line
workers do face challenges when working with people who face difficulties in their lives. 

Perhaps the issue that has most concerned the board during the year is the difficulty in ensuring that safeguarding training is delivered to all staff
who work with vulnerable adults. The larger organisations, such as the Local Authority, Health and the Police, have their own training programmes
that they can deliver to their staff but we have lacked a multi-agency training offer that we can deliver to a much wider group of staff. We have also
struggled to get reassurance that all staff have received the level of training appropriate to the role that they have. I am pleased to say that there is
progress on this issue and I am quite confident that we will be able to employ a Safeguarding Trainer in the coming year that will go a long way to
addressing those concerns.

The lockdown, triggered by the COVID-19 (Coronavirus) crisis, came into effect just as the year being reported upon was coming to an end. It is more
appropriate to comment more on that situation in the next annual report but, for the purpose of this report, I can say, as an Independent person, that
the agencies which work with vulnerable adults have shown considerable resolve in their determination to provide support to those in need.

Members of the public have a key role to play in keeping people safe. Communities can assist in identifying those in need of help and alerting the
relevant agencies. Those who live alone, who perhaps have limited or no family support, can sometimes struggle.  More information on how to report
a Safeguarding Concern can be found on page 4. Please remember, Safeguarding is Everyone’s Business.
 
Bob Dyson QPM,DL
Independent Chair Barnsley Safeguarding Adult Board

Welcome to the annual report of the Barnsley Safeguarding Adults Board (BSAB).

P A G E   1

P
age 28



P A G E   2

Abuse is any action, deliberate or unintentional, or a
failure to take action or provide care that results in
harm to the adult (this is called neglect). 

There are many different types of abuse; more
details about abuse can be found on the council
website by clicking here.

The website tells you how you can tell us if you, or
someone you know, is being harmed or abused.

WHAT IS ABUSE?

need  care and support, even if they are not getting care or
support now 
are experiencing, or at risk of, abuse or neglect 
as a result of their care and support needs is unable to protect
themselves from either the risk of abuse or the experience of
abuse or neglect

We help to keep all adults aged 18 and over safe who:

Adults who are not able to speak up for themselves are particularly
vulnerable and we all need to speak up to keep them safe.

WHO DO WE HELP KEEP SAFE?
(ADULT SAFEGUARDING)

Who told us they had concerns an adult was being hurt? 

SAFEGUARDING DATA

750 

500 

250 

0 
CARE

HOMES
PRIVATE

SOUTH
YORKSHIRE

POLICE

CARE
AGENCY

AMBULANCE
SERVICE

SELF COMMUNITY
DISTRICT
NURSING

RELATIVE,
FRIEND OR
NEIGBOUR

BERNESLAI
HOMES

AND THE
COUNCIL

BARNSLEY
HOSPITAL

VOLUNTARY
SECTOR

MENTAL
HEALTH

WORKER

GP PRIMARY
HEALTH

CARE TEAM

OTHER

229

181922262829323334
104113

375

633

SOURCE OF SAFEGUARDING CONTACTS
2019/20

P
age 29

https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/safeguarding


CARE HOME
44%

OWN HOME
40%

OTHER
6%

HOSPITAL
5%

COMMUNITY
5%The number of concerns related to abuse taking place in care homes

dropped from 52 percent to 44 percent of the total number of concerns
received,  due to the increase in concerns received from other
organisations. We are pleased to report a significant increase in
reporting of abuse in the community, which rose from one percent to five
percent. There has also been an increase of concerns about harm in the
adult’s home, up from 36 percent to 40 percent. This is a testament to
the work throughout the year to raise awareness of abuse in the
community. This increase is comparable with both national and local
data, but is still lower than many other areas.

Neglect
45%

physical
16%

financial
15%

onal psycological
10%

organisational
4%

sexual
3% The significant reduction in the number of organisational abuse cases from

10.7 percent in 2018/2019 to four percent in 2019/2020. This reduction is
reflective of the increased role of joint commissioning and the creation of a
specialist adult social care team working with care homes to provide high-
quality care. The doubling of reports of financial abuse to 15 percent during
the year reflects the training and media campaign completed to help staff and
volunteers identify and report it. We are still below national averages but we
are confident that the reports will continue to rise in 2020 – 2021, as we
continue to raise awareness of the issue. 

Self-neglect and hoarding concerns have also increased from 2.3 percent
in the previous year to four percent this year. Research suggests that two to
four percent of adults self neglect and/or hoard. Whilst not all of these require
any intervention, it does suggest that the numbers reported should be higher.

P A G E  3

LOCATION OF ABUSE OTHER
SIX

PERCENTCOMMUNITY 
FIVE PERCENT

HOSPITAL
FIVE PERCENT

OWN HOME
40 PERCENT

CARE HOME
44 PERCENT

TYPES OF ABUSE

NEGLECT
44 PERCENT

PHYSICAL
16 PERCENT

FINANCIAL
15 PERCENT

EMOTIONAL
PSYCOLOGICAL

TEN PERCENT

ORGANISATIONAL
FOUR PERCENT

SELFNEGLECT
FOUR PERCENT

SEXUAL
THREE PERCENT

DOMESTIC 
THREE PERCENT

LOCATION
OF ALLEGED

ABUSE
2019/20

TYPE OF
ABUSE

2019/20

P
age 30



An assessment or review of care by Adult Social Care 
Signposting information  to specialist services 
No further action as the adult declined any help at this time

A Section 42 enquiry begins when an adult meets the three stage test (see page 4) and they agree they want help to stop the
harm. This enquiry can also be made if it is in the persons “best interests” as they are unable to make this decision for themselves
(they lack capacity to make this decision due to dementia etc). In 2019/20, 26 percent of concerns met this criteria in the year
overall, a reduction from 38 percent in the previous year. The introduction of a new recording system in August 2019 provides
more robust data – see page 8). The conversion rate  of concerns meeting the threshold for a Section 42 enquiries varies from 22
percent to 54 percent, this will be addressed in the coming year to improve the quality of concerns received and to provide
assurance of the consistency of decision making within adult social care. The remaining 74 percent of cases that did not meet the
safeguarding threshold will have been offered support through one of the following:

The adults we supported to stop harm and abuse through a S42 enquiry are illustrated below:

P A G E   4

SAFEGUARDING ADULTS – S42 ENQUIRIES

White British
85%

Not stated
11%

Other
4%

65+
80%

16 to 64
20%

GENDER
2019/20

Female
57%

Male
43%

AGE
2019/20ETHNICITY

2019/20

FEMALE
57 PERCENT

MALE
43 PERCENT

WHITE BRITISH
85 PERCENT

OTHER
FOUR PERCENT

NOT STATED
11 PERCENT

16 TO 64
YEARS OLD

20 PERCENT

65+ YEARS OLD
80 PERCENT

P
age 31



The increase in reporting of abuse involving men is positive, this has risen from 30 percent to 43 percent) as they are often
under-represented in the data as they more likely to decline support. The rise in the number of adults aged over 65 (up from 70
percent in the previous year, to 80 percent this year) is in line with national data and reflects their increased reliance on services
or family support. The proportion of black and minority ethnic adults referred in for safeguarding support was four percent, which
is in line with our demographic data.

The 30 cases that met the three stage test that did not progress to a S42 enquiry 
were safeguarded by other assessments.

The data shown below relates to the 256 (S42) cases, in which the majority of adults report 
that safeguarding helped them feel safer by reducing or removing risks (96 percent).The Making 
Safeguarding Personal principles, which supports adults to make their own choices, may result in them
continuing to live with or maintain a relationship with the alleged source of harm. If other adults are at risk we will take action to
protect them, this may include use of the People in Positions of Trust policy if a worker or volunteer is involved in the harm.

CONCERNS, S42 AND MAKING SAFEGUARDING PERSONAL –
QUARTER 3 AND 4 -  2019/20

Concern only
70%

proceeded to s42 enq
27%

met stage 3
3%

P A G E   5

PROCEEDED
TO S42

ENQUIRY
27 PERCENT
256 CASES

CONCERN
ONLY

70 PERCENT
666 CASES

MET STAGE 3
THREE PERCENT

30 CASES

DID ADULTS FEEL THAT WE REMOVED 
THEIR RISKS BY WORKING WITH THEM 
IN SAFEGUARDING?

Removed Reduced Remains

50 
40 
30 
20 
10 

0 

48
PERCENT

48
PERCENT FOUR

PERCENT
RISKS

2019/2020

P
age 32



The proportion of people who use services who feel safe:

Adults in Barnsley report feeling safer than adults in all areas of the country, despite a small drop in 2017/18. Barnsley continues
to exceed both National and Yorkshire and Humber statistics. *

The proportion of people who use services who say that those services have made them feel safe and secure:

Adults in Barnsley continue to report that the services provided made them feel safe and the rates of satisfaction reported is
higher than all other areas of the country. * (* Data for 2019/20 is not available until October 2020)

b yh n x b yh n x b yh n

80 

60 

40 

20 

0 
2016/17 2017/18 2018/19

76
69.1 70.1 73.4 69.6 69.9 75.1 71.2 70

b yh n x b yh n x b yh n

100 

75 

50 

25 

0 

95
86.6 86.4 94.8

88.3 86.3

2016/17 2017/18 2018/19

97.1
88.2 86.9

P A G E   6

ADULTS WHO ARE SUPPORTED BY SOCIAL CARE
SERVICES WHO TELL US THEY FEEL SAFE

KEY
Barnsley
Yorkshire and Humber
National

P
age 33



P A G E   7

“CUCKOOING”
SAFEGUARDING CASE

MAKING SAFEGUARDING
PERSONAL (ADULT SOCIAL CARE)

South Yorkshire Police and Barnsley Council’s Shared
Accommodation Team worked with Marie (49), who
struggled with alcohol misuse, aggravated by the recent
death of her husband. A man named Harry, who was well
known for dealing class A drugs and violent offences
moved into her property and very quickly began to deal
drugs from the house, with a group of knife carrying
enforcers. 

Harry took over the bedroom and controlled who entered
the property leaving Marie frightened and often limited
to the floor or sofa to sleep. Marie and her neighbours
contacted the police in August and they quickly acted,
raising a safeguarding concern, securing and executing a
search warrant based on the information provided. 

Following the search, Harry left the property and moved to
another address in Barnsley. The police asked the courts
for a civil injunction to ban Harry from Barnsley due to the
level of risk he posed to Marie and other vulnerable adults.
This was granted and no further issues have been reported.
 Marie was supported by the council’s Housing Options to
secure alternative accommodation, Marie has had no
contact with Harry since the search warrant and reports
feeling much safer in her new home.

Jason is a man in his 30s, he is terminally ill and receives
support from a domiciliary care and District Nurses to manage his
personal care needs. He has developed a number of pressure ulcers
due to his limited mobility. One of the pressure ulcers progressed
rapidly and resulted in a 12 week hospital admission. During this
period he was admitted to intensive care.

Jason and his wife raised concerns that neither the District Nursing
service and the Domiciliary Care service had picked up on the
pressure ulcer and a safeguarding enquiry commenced. Adult Social
Care worked closely with Jason and his family. Jason was involved
in the planning meeting that tasked the Domiciliary Care service and
District Nursing to review how they missed the new pressure ulcer
and their conflicting policies. Learning was identified for both
organisations and action plans were agreed. Jason stated that he
felt that lessons had been learnt to protect him and others from
similar circumstances. Jason noted that he wouldn’t want a decision
to impact on the level of care he would receive in the future. He was
reassured that this would not be the case and both organisations
were deemed to have neglected Jason. Jason’s health improved to a
level that he could returned home with the same providers and no
further issues have been identified. Jason was part of his planning
meeting and due to not been able to sit for long periods was
contacted through video call for his outcomes meeting where he and
his wife were supported by an advocate..

(Please note these are not the real names of the individuals involved)

CASE STUDIES

P
age 34



Priority 1 – Making 
Safeguarding Personal (MSP)

Embed MSP into all safeguarding practice
and seek feedback from adults about
their experience and provide this data to
the Board.

Work with SAFE to increase their
involvement in the production of the
Board’s plans to keep adults safe.

Review the impact of our publicity
campaigns and whether it increases the
number of referrals from them.

Work in partnership with Barnsley Safer
Partnership and Health and Wellbeing
Boards to address issues that affect all
adults.

Priority 2 – prevention of abuse 
and neglect

Deliver multi-agency training to support
the use of the decision support guidance.

Action

Safeguarding Adults Forum by Experience (SAFE) have designed a leaflet for use
by workers and volunteers to help adults understand the safeguarding journey
and who to contact with any concerns. It will be reviewed in the coming year to
make sure it is helpful to adults.

SAFE have worked with Sheffield Safeguarding customer group to share ideas
and have suggested the creation of a universal health passport for any adult who
may need support to access health care. In addition to the sub-group, they have
been an active voice in board meetings.

The regular campaigns around safety have been well received and the number of
referrals received from adults, relatives and neighbours has increased in the
last year.

Joint work has been started around the increased risk of abuse faced by adults
who are lonely and/or socially isolated. Areas for joint work around the learning
disability strategy commenced and BSAB received updates on LeDeR reviews into
the deaths of adults with learning disabilities.

Action

Training has been delivered to over 120 workers, the guidance is available on the
website, however additional work will be needed in 2020/21 as too many
concerns do not meet the threshold for a safeguarding enquiry.

P A G E   8

PROGRESS ON ACTION 2019/20 STRATEGIC PLAN

P
age 35



Increase our contact with the voluntary 
and independent sectors.

Seek assurance that all care provision in
Barnsley is safe for adults who use them.

Review data from all partners to provide
evidence that services are safe.

Priority 3 – making sure safeguarding
arrangement work effectively

Deliver learning events to share the
findings from Safeguarding Adults 
Reviews (SAR) and audits.

Receive regional and national safeguarding
data to help us evaluate how well we are
doing to keep people safe.

Receive assurances that staff are
appropriately trained to recognise and
respond to abuse.

Barnsley Council for Voluntary Services (BCVS) now sit on the Board and sub-
groups. BCVS have agreed to complete a training needs analysis in the voluntary
sector. The Board Manager regularly attends the provider forums. A member of
the voluntary sector chairs one of the sub groups.

Representatives from joint commissioning provide data to the Board quarterly and
attend meetings to answer questions. We also have an annual attendance by a
representative from the Care Quality Commission (CQC) to share their findings
about local care providers.

All partners produce data covering training, recruitment and safeguarding activity
every quarter.

Action

140 staff attended two self-neglect learning events to  explore  how to work with
adults who self-neglect and/or hoard. Presentations from a specialist barrister and
a researcher were well received. Specialist training was provided to adult social
care staff, BIADS Dementia service and to South West Yorkshire Partnership Trust
(SWYPFT).

Data from both regional and national sources are used to evaluate performance at
least twice a year. The learning informs the contents of the performance
dashboard produced by all partners every three months.

We are satisfied that all staff have access to basic information, we are aware that
staff who require more specialist training need to receive this. This will be carried
over to 2020/2021.

P A G E   9

P
age 36



Continue to complete quarterly audits to
improve policies and practice.

Implement robust, open and honest
challenge processes at the board and its
sub-groups.

Priority 4 – Transitions. Making sure all
young people who need safeguarding 
into adulthood have support

Work with the Barnsley Safeguarding
Children’s partnership (BSCP) to reduce
the risks of young people being harmed as
they become adults.

Facilitate with Barnsley Safeguarding
Children’s Partnership (BSCP) a public
facing Safeguarding Awareness week.

Employee costs
Public transport
Supplies and services
Business support
NHS Barnsley CCG
Miscellaneous Contributions
Police and Crime Commissioner
Barnsley Council
Total

Audits have been completed into self-neglect and hoarding, management of
People in Positions of Trust ( PIPOT) cases this year. Both audits resulted in
changes to the policies which have been re-issued. An audit into the interface
between safeguarding and homeless was started but not completed due to
COVID-19.

All partners contribute data every quarter which is examined by the Board. All
organisations are required to share information about risks to their ability to keep
adults safe and annual development is held.

Action

Audits, completed by BSCP, have provided assurance about young adults with
disabilities, those who are “looked after”. However, young adults have been
identified and work has taken place to create a multi-agency panel to address the
safety concerns of 17 to 25 year-olds.

A highly successful week took place in July and involved schools, colleges, health,
Police and other partners to highlight support available to all residents of Barnsley
to prevent and stop harm and abuse.

P A G E   1 0

BUDGET – 
YEAR END 2019/2020

Income 
-
-
-
-
26,648
3,115
5,595
53,005
88,363

Expenditure
43,327
290
19,746
25,000
-
-
-
-
88,363

P
age 37



We worked with the family of “Clive” to complete a Safeguarding Adults review into his death as a result of self-neglect. 
Clive lived alone, following the death of his parents, he became increasingly isolated partly due to his anxiety about leaving
the property and his obsessive hand washing and fear of germs. He was often discharged from services as he did not
respond or failed to attend appointments, this included access to Department of Work and Pensions benefits. Several
actions have been identified to increase our ability to work with adults like Clive in the coming year. The full report will be
published on the safeguarding adults’ website. The Coroner referred Mrs H, as a possible Safeguarding Adults Review, due
to his concerns about self-neglect and hoarding. The board have agreed that a review is required into the circumstance of
her and her husband’s living conditions and contact with services. An external author has been appointed, however as this
was received in 2019, it will not be completed until the summer of 2020.

P A G E   1 1

SAFEGUARDING ADULTS REVIEWS AND LEARNING LESSONS

KEY ACHIEVEMENTS
Policy update
Following an audit into self-neglect and hoarding cases and the review of Clive’s death, the
self-neglect and hoarding policy was updated. A new risk tool has also been developed to
help workers assess the risks faced by people who hoard and a list of key contacts was
developed. (This is not a photo of Clive)

The SAFE group have produced a leaflet for workers and volunteers to leave with an adult who has been harmed or abused
to explain the safeguarding journey and who they can contact for help. Links have been made with the Sheffield
Safeguarding Customer Forum and it is hoped that joint work can be completed in coming year. Unfortunately, due to
COVID-19, members of the group were not able to attend a regional event on customer groups, it is hoped that this will
take place in 2021. The group have started working with Public Health to create a universal health passport for all adults to
use to help them get health services when they will struggle to communicate their needs, due to learning disabilities,
dementia etc.

The Board keeps in touch with colleagues in Yorkshire and Humberside and was involved in a Local Government Association
led event into decision making about which safeguarding concerns are screened into safeguarding (three stage test).

P
age 38



Community volunteers and their managers were provided with safeguarding training to support them to keep adults safe
during lockdown.
Safeguarding champions were identified and given training and resources to help them support staff and volunteers to
respond to harm and abuse promptly and appropriately.
A specialist conference into self-neglect and hoarding was held with input from a specialist barrister and a leading
researcher.
To respond to the low numbers of financial abuse cases reported locally, over 160 staff and volunteers attended four
sessions run by the Police and the Board Manager to learn about scams, cyber-crime, financial abuse and what can be
done to help adults stop and ideally prevent financial abuse and scams.
A session to learn from Safeguarding Adults’ reviews (local and national cases) was held to develop and improve
practice and the way we work together.
Barnsley struggles to deliver the multi-agency training needed as the Board does not have access to a training post.

The People in Positions of Trust policy has been updated following audits to include workers and volunteers who are
alleged to have harmed adults at risk outside of Barnsley. The new policy is on the website.

South Yorkshire Safeguarding Awareness Week July 2019
Another packed week of training for staff, volunteers and the public were held, including coffee mornings in all the Area
Councils. 379 members of the public engaged with the 19 organisations at an all-day public event at the transport
interchange. 36 adults were referred for additional support and 50 workers and volunteers used the opportunity to update
their knowledge. A South Yorkshire training event was held to support the management of workers and
volunteers who harm adults they work with or know (PIPOT). The Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) helped us produce a
short animation explaining self-neglect and hoarding.

Pathways and Partnerships have produced guidance and policies to support safeguarding practice. These include – sexual
safety, how to complete a section 42 enquiry,how to recognise wilful neglect, React to Red (tissue viability) and financial
abuse and scams. We have worked with our Local Domestic Violence service to receive assurance that we are protecting
older adults who are victims of domestic violence. (see website for copies of the guidance).

P A G E   1 2

P
age 39



Our active media programme has helped the public in Barnsley stay safe and to look out for more vulnerable neighbours and
friends.   The work to highlight scams and bogus callers, particularly since COVID-19, has been well received and have
prevented the increase in scams seen in other parts of the country. Thanks to our communications colleagues for their help
with this.

We have said goodbye to some longstanding members of the Board and the sub-group. We want to thank them for their
work to help keep adults safe and welcome the new member to Barnsley Safeguarding Adults Board.

The board has contributed to a national SAR library and a research project to identify trends from SARs and lessons
learned. We have agreed to look at how we safeguarding adults who are homeless or insecurely housed and started an
audit of four cases of adults who sadly died this winter. We have updated our “risk” register to help us prioritise the
work we do and will continue to develop this in the coming year. If you have any suggestions about work the board should
be considering please email the Board Manager at CathErine@barnsley.gov.uk.

Ryan is a 26 year old single male. He has significant learning difficulties, but had not
 been formally diagnosed. Ryan had maintained his own flat for a two year period, 
with support from his mother. At the end of November 2019, Ryan’s mum contacted 
the Housing Management Officer to inform them that  Ryan was too afraid to return 
to his flat as he was being financially abused and threatened with violence by people 
in the community. To protect Ryan the information was shared with both South Yorkshire 
Police and a safeguarding referral made to Adult Social Care. Contact was made with 
Homeless Housing Advice to explore alternative housing options which resulted in a move to an alternative (safe) temporary
accommodation. Ryan was assessed by adult social care and safeguarded. Berneslai Homes and partners completed a risk
assessment that resulted in a Band 1 priority (top priority) being awarded to support a move to a new permanement home.
Due to  Ryan’s vulnerabilities he was added to the Berneslai Homes vulnerable list to help him to bid for a new home. Ryan
and his mum (with his consent) had regular contact with the Housing Management Officer, the Police, adult social care and
the homeless team. This had a positive impact on Ryan’s physical and emotional wellbeing. Ryan was successfully rehoused
in March 2020 where he remains with ongoing support.

P A G E   1 3

SAFEGUARDING CASE STUDY – BERNESLAI HOMES AND PARTNERS

(Please note these are not the real names or images of the individuals involved)

P
age 40



PERFORMANCE
MANAGEMENT AND

QUALITY ASSURANCE
SUB-GROUP

 
CHAIR: SYP

SAFEGUARDING ADULTS
FORUM BY EXPERIENCE

 
CHAIR:

MARGARET BAKER
(MEMBER OF SAFE)

LEARNING AND
DEVELOPMENT SUB GROUP

 
CHAIR: BARNSLEY COUNCIL

SAR AND DHR SUB
COMMITTEE

 
CHAIR:

BOB DYSON. INDEPENDENT
CHAIR OF BSAB 

PATHWAYS AND
PARTNERSHIP SUB

GROUP
 

CHAIR: CCG AND
INDEPENDENT SECTOR

P A G E   1 4

BARNSLEY SAFEGUARDING ADULTS BOARD STRUCTURE

INDEPENDENT CHAIR: BOB DYSON

BARNSLEY SAFEGUARDING ADULTS BOARD

P
age 41



Strategic Priority 1 - Making
safeguarding personal
Support adults who have been
abused to stop the harm and feel safe

Use data from adults who have been
safeguarded to improve practice.

Work in partnership with the Community
Safety, Health and Wellbeing Boards on
issues that affect all groups.
Safeguarding and homelessness,
cuckooing etc

Embed Making Safeguarding Personal
(MSP) by use of the new leaflet and
collecting data from adults about their
experience of Safeguarding

Review impact of publicity on public
awareness and the number of concerns
raised by them

Strategic Priority 2 - Prevention
Preventing abuse and neglect
from taking place and supporting
people to feel safer.

Employ a multi- agency trainer to
coordinate and deliver high-quality
education to all workers and
volunteers

Increase our contact with the
voluntary and independent groups in
Barnsley to help them keep adults
safe

Receive data that helps us to drive up
the quality of all care providers
locally.

Deliver learning events to share
learning from Safeguarding Adults
Reviews, jointly with the other Boards

Strategic Priority 3 - Accountability
Making sure safeguarding arrangements
work effectively.

Hold all partners to account by robust challenge
at Board and via quarterly dashboard.

Receive regional and national safeguarding data
and information to help us evaluate how well
we are doing compared with other Local
Authorities.

Receive data from the sub-groups to confirm
that adults are safe, by use of audits and
sharing of good practice

Embed the learning from Safeguarding Adults
Reviews to improve practice and keep adults
safe

Continue to improve the quality of safeguarding
concerns received from all organisations.

Strategic Priority 4 - Transitions
Working with young people to
reduce the risk of abuse as they
become adults

Hold an annual safeguarding
awareness week with the Children’s
partnership

Work with the Children’s Board and
the Safer Barnsley Partnership
Board to reduce the risks of
vulnerable young adults being
harmed or abused as they become
adults.

Use the learning from Safeguarding
Adults Reviews and other sources to
deliver a high-quality service to
young adults.

BARNSLEY SAFEGUARDING ADULTS BOARD (BSAB) VISION
“KEEPING PEOPLE SAFE IN BARNSLEY”

Publish a Strategic Plan – what
we will do
Publish an Annual Report –
detailing what we have done to
keep people safe.
Complete Safeguarding Adults
Reviews when adults die or are
seriously injured as a result of
abuse/neglect.

Statutory Responsibilities of BSAB :
Put the adult who has been harmed or at risk of harm at the centre
of everything we do, listen to their views about how we can help
keep adults safe.
Hold board members to account – are we/they doing enough to
keep adults safe
Collect and share information about how well we are keeping adults
safe and what more we could do
Make sure our workers and volunteers get the training they need to
provide safe services and to share concerns if they think an adult is
being hurt or abused
Review our policies and guidance to make sure we are constantly
improving.

BSAB Role is to:
Board with Independent Chair.
Performance Management & Quality
Assurance
Sub-Group. 
Pathways and Partnership Sub Group.
Domestic Homicide Review
(DHR)/Safeguarding
Adult Review (SAR) executive group 
Safeguarding Adults Forum(by) Experience
Learning and Development Sub Group

BSAB Structure:

BARNSLEY SAFEGUARDING ADULTS BOARD STRATEGIC PLAN 2020 - 2021 – WHAT WE WILL DO

P A G E   1 5

P
age 42



P A G E  1 6

OUR PARTNERS

Thanks to all our partners who have worked with us to demonstrate
what they are doing to prevent harm and abuse every day.

P
age 43



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1 

 

Report of the Executive Director Core Services  
to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee (OSC)  

on 8 September 2020  
 

The Barnsley Safeguarding Children Partnership Annual Report 2019-20  
- Cover Report 

 
1.0 Introduction and Background 
 
1.1 The Barnsley Safeguarding Children Partnership (BSCP) is the organisation 

responsible for agreeing how services and agencies work together to safeguard and 
promote the welfare of children and young people in the borough and ensuring that 
they do so effectively.  The Children and Social Work Act 2017 and Working Together 
to Safeguard Children 2018 places the responsibility on the three ‘Safeguarding 
Partners’, the police; the local authority; and health, to formulate the local 
arrangements for partnership working to safeguard children in their own geographical 
area. 
 

1.2 The Partnership, which replaced the Barnsley Safeguarding Children Board from the 
beginning of April 2019, has an Independent Chair and brings together senior 
representatives from the key statutory, voluntary, and community sectors with a 
responsibility for delivering services to children and young people.   
 

1.3 The Chair of the partnership is accountable to the three Safeguarding Partners, the 
Police, Health and the Local Authority (through the Chief Executive and Director of 
Children's Services). Each agency representative involved in the work of the 
Partnership is accountable to the governing body of their own agency, ensuring that 
safeguarding children remains high on the agenda across the area. 

 
1.4 In the past, children’s social care services in Barnsley were judged as requiring 

improvement by Ofsted and the Barnsley Safeguarding Children Board had a 
significant governance role in ensuring that improvements continued to be 
implemented and embedded within the service.  Ofsted re-inspected children’s social 
care services in October 2018 resulting in a judgement of ‘good’. 

 
1.5 The Partnership continues to meet to ensure that:- 
  

 children and families are getting the help they need, including early help 

 local services are doing what they should to safeguard and promote the welfare of 
children in the area 

 the quality of the work done is to the highest standards 

 lessons are learned from when children have been harmed to prevent it happening 
again in the future 

 local training is provided to help professionals to keep children safe 
 

2.0 Current Position 
 
2.1 The Barnsley Safeguarding Children Partnership’s Annual Report 2019-20 (Item 5b - 

attached) outlines the work of the Partnership and its sub-groups over the last year 
and indicates its priorities and plans for continued improvement, It also shows how 
they try to include the voice of children, young people and families at every 
opportunity.  
 

Page 45

Item 5a



2 

 

2.2 The governance structure of the Partnership is outlined on page seven of the report, 
which shows the seven sub-groups who ensure the work of the Partnership is carried 
forward.  These groups are:- 

 

 Performance Audit and Quality Assurance Sub-Group 

 Child Exploitation Strategy Group 

 Policy, Procedures and Workforce Practice & Development Sub-Group 

 Child Death Overview Panel 

 Neglect Sub-Group 

 Local Child Safeguarding Practice Review (LCSPR) Sub-Group  

 Disability Sub-Group 
 
2.3 It should be noted that Local Child Safeguarding Practice Reviews (LCSPRs) replaced 

Serious Case Reviews (SCRs) and this sub-committee was known as the SCR sub-
committee under the previous arrangements for partnership working to safeguard 
children. 

 
2.4 In the coming year (2020-21), the sub-groups plan to:- 
 

 Let people know how to get help or report harm and provide children, young 
people, and their families who have been harmed with support and information 

 Design and deliver effective training for all staff and volunteers 

 Work across the partnership to understand and address the impact of Covid-19 in 
communities to identify and respond to hidden harm 

 Evaluate children and young people’s views of safeguarding and demonstrate if we 
have helped them to reduce risk 

 Carry out LCSPRs and lessons learned reviews to improve the way children are 
kept safe 

 Continue to provide performance information to the Partnership as an assurance 
that agencies are working together to prevent harm, and regularly challenge 
processes and performance at Board level to show all organisations are being held 
to account for the safety of children in Barnsley 

 Strengthen the role of independent scrutiny of partnership arrangements through a 
peer review 

 Identify any gaps for young people moving from children’s to adult services that 
may leave them at risk of harm 

 Ensure a joint response to shared themes 
 
3.0 Covid-19 
 
3.1 Covid-19 did not impact on the work of the Partnership in 2019–20 and they are 

pleased to report that:- 
 

 The Partnership and its sub-groups continued to meet virtually throughout the lock 
down period 

 Active work was undertaken to highlight the increased risks of domestic 
violence/abuse and online safety and other safeguarding concerns was completed 
by both BMBC and other partners’ communications teams 

 The Safeguarding Partnership website was regularly updated with guidance as 
published by Central Government and other local and national agencies 

 The independent chair of the Partnership was party to the weekly calls with the 
Chief Executive about Covid-19 

 Virtual training was delivered to front line workers 

Page 46



3 

 

 Links were maintained with safeguarding colleagues both locally, sub-regionally 
and regionally 

 The Partnership received updates from all partners about how they were continuing 
to keep children safe and respond to allegations of abuse and neglect 

 To facilitate this further, BMBC and Partners have maintained a Vulnerable 
Children Tracker, which has helped to keep the focus on our most vulnerable 
children and families to ensure they are seen and supported as much as possible. 
Barnsley are the only authority in the country to have gone to this length and it has 
been considered nationally as an exemplar 

 The Partnership Manager has been in weekly contact with the Designated 
Safeguarding Leads (DSLs) in all schools, colleges and academies in the borough 
throughout lockdown to offer support with any children and young people 
presenting as particularly vulnerable or not seen by any other agency, to help 
coordinate an appropriate response and where necessary, escalate to senior 
management.  This has been very well received and where appropriate, partners 
have been co-ordinated to ensure that children are seen and concerns 
addressed.  Again, the Partnership are not aware of any other authority going to 
this extent to ensure that vulnerable children and families are kept on the 
appropriate service’s radar 

 
4.0 Overview & Scrutiny Committee (OSC) Consultation with Local Young People 
 
4.1 On Monday 3rd August 2020, OSC Members met virtually with representatives from 

Barnsley Youth Council, Care4Us Council and Special Educational Needs & 
Disabilities (SEND) Forum. This was to find out how young people in Barnsley have 
found lockdown and the impact of Covid-19, as well as gather their thoughts on 
relevant services on the OSC work programme during 2020-21. 

 
4.2 The main safeguarding issue raised by local young people was bullying. This was 

mentioned by a number of young people both from personal experience as well as on 
behalf of a number of their peers. Young people expressed concerns about the long 
term impact bullying has, such as damaging people’s confidence going into higher 
education and the workplace.  

 
4.3 For some young people, not being at school during lockdown had been a nice break 

from daily bullying. Some young people felt that schools needed to re-prioritise this 
issue, especially as they felt it was not always being picked up on in schools and 
tackled. The young people reported mixed experiences in how schools handle 
bullying, some of which were positive, including specially trained staff and support 
services; however, this was not consistent across all schools. 

 
5.0     Invited Witnesses  
 
5.1 At today’s meeting, a number of Partnership representatives have been invited to 

answer questions from the Overview and Scrutiny Committee regarding their work 
over the last annual reporting year (April 2019-March 2020), as well as work being 
undertaken currently and future plans:- 

 

 Bob Dyson, Independent Chair, BSCP 

 Mel John-Ross, Executive Director, Children’s Services, BMBC 

 Debbie Mercer, Service Director, Children’s Social Care & Safeguarding, BMBC 

 Nigel Leeder, Barnsley Safeguarding Children Partnership Manager, BMBC 

 Cllr Margaret Bruff, Cabinet Spokesperson – Children’s Services 

Page 47



4 

 

 Chief Superintendent Sarah Poolman, Barnsley District Commander, South 
Yorkshire Police (SYP) 

 Tracy-Ann Taylor, Named Nurse Safeguarding Children, Barnsley Hospital NHS 
Foundation Trust (BHNFT) 

 Angela Fawcett, Designated Nurse Safeguarding Children and Looked After 
Children, Barnsley Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) 

 Emma Cox, Assistant Director of Nursing, Quality & Professions, South West 
Yorkshire Partnership NHS Foundation Trust (SWYPFT) 

 
6.0     Possible Areas for Investigation 
 
6.1 Members may wish to ask questions around the following areas: 
 

 What are the good news stories for 2019-20 and how do they improve outcomes 
for children in the borough? 
 

 What changes have been made as a result of changing from a ‘Board’ to a 
‘Partnership’ and how are these arrangements bedding in? 

 

 How effective are the partnership working arrangements? Do all partners 
contribute equally? 

 

 How do you ensure that ‘the voice of the child’ influences the work of the 
partnership and what evidence is there of this?  

 

 What impact have changes in key officers had on the partnership? 
 

 What approach do partners take to understand and respond to young people’s 
experiences of significant harm beyond their families, such as their peers 
neighbourhoods, schools and online? 
 

 How do you ensure that children develop the right tools, such as confidence and 
resilience, to reduce their chances of being exploited or becoming vulnerable? 
 

 What is being done by the Partnership to tackle bullying and support schools in 
Barnsley, especially given the concerns raised by local young people? 

 

 How confident are you that staff have the time and skills to be curious and 
persistent with those children who are hard to reach? 

 

 Can you give us an example of any issues that were highlighted as a result of the 
audits conducted this year and how you intend to remedy them?  

 

 Does the Partnership consider gambling to be hidden harm for vulnerable children? 
 

 How do you demonstrate that the work of the Partnership is value for money? 
 

 What actions could be taken by Members to assist in the work of Barnsley 
Safeguarding Children Partnership? 

 
7.0     Background Papers and Useful Links 
 

 BSCP Annual Report 2018-19 (Item 5b - attached) 

Page 48



5 

 

 

 Barnsley Safeguarding Children Partnership New Arrangements and Implementing 
the Requirements of Working Together 2018:- 
https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/media/10311/barnsley-safeguarding-children-
partnership-implementation-document.pdf  

 

 Barnsley Safeguarding Children Website:- 
https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/services/children-families-and-
education/safeguarding-families-in-barnsley/safeguarding-children-in-barnsley/   

 
8.0     Glossary 
 

BHNFT Barnsley Hospital NHS Foundation Trust 
BSCP  Barnsley Safeguarding Children Partnership 
CCG  Clinical Commissioning Group 
CE  Child Exploitation 
CSE  Child Sexual Exploitation 
DSL  Designated Safeguarding Lead 
LCSPR Local Child Safeguarding Practice Reviews 
OSC  Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
SCRs   Serious Case Reviews 
SEND  Special Educational Needs & Disabilities 
SWYPFT South West Yorkshire Partnership NHS Foundation Trust 
SYP   South Yorkshire Police 

 
9.0  Officer Contact 
 

Anna Marshall, Scrutiny Officer 
28 August 2020 

 

Page 49

https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/media/10311/barnsley-safeguarding-children-partnership-implementation-document.pdf
https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/media/10311/barnsley-safeguarding-children-partnership-implementation-document.pdf
https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/services/children-families-and-education/safeguarding-families-in-barnsley/safeguarding-children-in-barnsley/
https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/services/children-families-and-education/safeguarding-families-in-barnsley/safeguarding-children-in-barnsley/


This page is intentionally left blank



ANNUAL REPORT

2019  –  2020

BARNSLEY

SAFEGUARDING

CHILDREN PARTNERSHIP

Item 5b

P
age 51



The Barnsley Safeguarding Children Partnership is responsible for bringing local services together to plan and agree how best to keep
children and young people in the area safe.

The Partnership develops shared policies and plans to protect vulnerable children. Their role is to make sure all children are well cared for
and able to reach their full potential. They also provide support and training for people who work with children and young people, to
make sure that they are fully aware of their safeguarding responsibilities.

P A G E  2

Foreword - Independent Chair
This Is What We Do and Our Strategic Priorities
Our Partners
BSCP Governance Arrangements
BSCP Governance Structure
Voice of the Child
The Child Safeguarding Practice Review Panel
Local Safeguarding Children Practice Review (LSPCR) Sub Committee
Child Death Overview Panel
Child Exploitation Strategy Group
Policy, Procedure and Workforce Practice and Development
Safeguarding Children with a Disability or Complex Health Need Sub Committee
Performance Audit and Quality Assurance Sub-Group
Neglect Sub-Group
The Safeguarding Landscape and What To Do If You Are Worried
BSCB Budget 2019 – 20 and Summary

3
4
5
6
7

8 to 9
9

10
11 to 12

14
15
16
17
18
19

CONTENTS PAGE

P
age 52



Thank you for giving your time to reading the first annual report of the Barnsley Safeguarding Children Partnership (BSCP). The BSCP replaced the Barnsley
Safeguarding Children Board, on the 1 April 2019, as the partnership arrangement for ensuring that agencies work together to keep children and young people safe
in Barnsley. You can read more about the governance arrangements on page 4. I am pleased to be able to say that one thing that has not changed is the shared
commitment to improving practice and keeping children safe.

This report was prepared by the Partnership. I have reviewed the contents and, as the Independent Chair, I can say that the contents are an accurate report of the
activities of the partnership and its sub groups.

The Partnership has played an important role in the Continuous Service Improvement Plan which takes a multi-agency approach to identifying where action can be
taken to improve the service that is provided to children and their families. The structured programme of audits of actual cases is a means by which the partnership
takes a proactive approach to checking that cases are being managed in accordance with policies and that the correct decisions are being made. Initiatives like these
contribute to the Partnership’s shared ambition to move from the current ‘Good’ Ofsted grading to ‘Outstanding’.

The report mentions the Local Safeguarding Practice Reviews (LCSPRs), formerly known as Serious Case Reviews, that were commissioned during the year. Due to
the fact that they are connected to police investigations, they could not be published during the year but will be published in 2020/21. LCSPRs are another means by
which the partnership demonstrates its willingness to learn lessons from cases.

BSCP can be proud of the Multi-Agency Safeguarding Training that it provides to staff working with vulnerable children and their families. It offers a wide range of
courses that equip staff with the knowledge and skills they need to support children. It includes training for the Designated Safeguarding Leads in schools, these are
teachers who have a particular role in respect of safeguarding children. The Partnership recognises the valuable role that schools play in identifying and working with
children at risk.

Work has commenced with the Barnsley Safeguarding Adults Board to review the way that Young People transition into adulthood. For the vast majority, the
necessary support and guidance is available to them from their friends and families. However, for some young people, it can be a very challenging time that can
impact on their future life chances. A multi-agency audit gave very positive feedback on the support given to children with disabilities and complex health needs but it
is accepted that there will be benefit in reviewing the support available to the wider group of young people. We will report on the progress made in next year’s report.

This report covers the period to the 31 March 2020 which is shortly after the lockdown was introduced in response to the COVID-19 (Coronavirus) pandemic. It is
appropriate that details of how Safeguarding was managed during the COVID-19 crisis should feature more strongly in the next annual report. However, it is
important to me to record that I saw that agencies did respond with a positive ‘can do’ attitude to the challenges faced and were determined to keep vulnerable
children at the front of their thinking.

Members of the public play an important role in being the eyes in the community that can report any concerns regarding the safety and welfare of
any child. Details of how to report any concerns you may have about a child are shown on page 18. Please remember, Safeguarding is Everyone’s
Business.

Bob Dyson QPM,DL
Independent Chair - Barnsley Safeguarding Children Partnership

Foreword from the Independent Chair
P A G E  3

P
age 53



Ensure that safeguarding children and young people is at the centre of everything we do
Hold Partnership members to account – are we/they doing enough to keep children and
young people safe?
Collect and share information about how well we are keeping children and young people
safe and what more we could do
Produce a ‘Plan on a Page’

The Role of the Barnsley Safeguarding Children Partnership is to:

P A G E  4

THIS IS WHAT WE DO
The Responsibilities of the Barnsley Safeguarding Children
Partnership
The Role of the Barnsley Safeguarding Children Partnership
The Structure of the Barnsley Safeguarding Children Partnership
It also outlines our Strategic Priorities

We have created a ‘Plan on a Page’ which sets out:

The Partnership will continue to monitor
service improvement through the
Continuous Service Improvement Plan
and a schedule of regular audit activity 
The Partnership will continue to seek
the views of children and young people 
Safeguarding Awareness Week
provides an opportunity for the
partnership and community to come
together with the message
“Safeguarding is Everybody’s Business“

Strategic Priority 1
Sharing and Engaging

Ensure the availability of quality multi
agency child protection training and the
provision of quality safeguarding
services.
Supporting children and young people
to have a voice.
Help shape services and support best
practice via the Designated
Safeguarding Leads and other Forums
Ensure accessibility of information via
the website and other resources

Strategic Priority 2
Helping, Empowering, Supporting

The synergy obtained from strong
partnership working remains an essential
element of effective safeguarding.
The continuing effectiveness of the work
of the Partnership will continue to be
subject to scrutiny
Ensure partners are kept up to date with
emerging themes and key messages
Support learning and development
through Local Child Safeguarding
Practice Reviews and Lessons Learned

Strategic Priority 3
Prevention

Continue to ensure that the thresholds
are understood and correctly applied
by partner agency staff and that
effective use is made of the escalation
process in cases where there are
concerns about the decision making.
The Partnership will continue to
strengthen and evidence its own
effectiveness through rigorous
challenge, participation and
engagement.

Strategic Priority 3
Accountability

Let people know how to get help or report harm
Design and deliver effective training for all staff and volunteers
Provide children and young people and their families who have been harmed with support and information
Work across the Partnership understand and address the impact  of Coronavirus in communities to identify and respond to Hidden Harm for children
Evaluate children and young people’s views of safeguarding and demonstrate if we have helped them to reduce risk
Carry out Local Child Safeguarding Practice Reviews and Lessons Learned Reviews to improve the way we keep children safe
Continue to provide Performance Information to the Board to assure the Board that we are working together to prevent harm
Regularly challenge processes and performance at Board level to show all organisations are being held to account for the safety of children in Barnsley
Strengthen the role of independent scrutiny of Partnership Arrangements through a Peer Review
Identify any gaps for young people moving from children’s to adult services that may leave them at risk of harm
Ensure synergy and a joint response to shared themes such as Contextual Safeguarding including CSE and Child Exploitation / Modern Day Slavery / Harmful sexual behaviour
/Female Genital Mutilation (FGM)/ Honour Based Violence /Forced Marriage (FM) and Prevent

THIS IS WHAT WE WILL DO

P
age 54



P A G E  5

OUR PARTNERS

We also have a very close working relationship with the schools, academies and colleges in
Barnsley and representation from both senior and junior schools on the BSCP and its sub-groups.

P
age 55



It will retain the services of an Independent Chair. It is considered that there is benefit in having Partnership meetings chaired by an individual who is not the
representative of any single agency and is able to bring their experience of acting as a critical friend, who encourages appropriate challenge, and plays an important role
in holding agencies to account. The role is developing to include more aspects of scrutiny of arrangements.
It will have an annual programme of independent case file audits. This will take the form of both single agency and multi-agency audits targeted at specific issues, for
example Neglect and Child Sexual Exploitation, which will review cases against agreed criteria to independently assess if contact with children and families was in
accordance with policies and procedures and that it was appropriate to the circumstances thereby producing the right outcomes.
The BSCP commits to an active involvement in the Barnsley Metropolitan Borough Council Scrutiny arrangements. This Annual Report will be the subject of a BMBC
Scrutiny Committee meeting.
The BSCP is committed to involving children and young people in having an active role in local arrangements. It works closely with the Children’s Trust Executive Group
to consult with children and young people on the formulation of plans and strategies. The BSCP holds its meetings in Secondary Schools when practical and welcomes
observers from the schools to the meetings. After the meetings, members of the BSCP meet with a focus group of students to gain a better understanding of what it is
like to be a young person growing up in Barnsley and what current safeguarding issues affect their daily lives.
Local elected members attend the BSCP as part of ensuring that local people are involved and have a voice.
The BSCP commissions Independent Authors to conduct Child Safeguarding Practice Reviews in appropriate cases that meet the criteria set out in WTG 2018.
The Partnership takes part in Peer Reviews when appropriate

Barnsley Safeguarding Children Partnership (BSCP) published its arrangements to meet the guidance contained in Working Together 2018 on 1st April 2019. We went live
as the BSCP 1st April 2019. The arrangements can be viewed on the BSCP website here.

Working Together 2018 changes the governance arrangements that existed under earlier versions of Working Together and reflects The Children and Social Work Act 2017
which received Royal Assent in April 2017. Section 30 of the Act removes the requirement for local areas to have Local Safeguarding Children Boards. Sections 16 – 23
introduce a duty on 3 key partners (Local Authorities, Police and Clinical Commissioning Groups) to make arrangements with other partners as locally determined to work
together in a local area to protect and safeguard children.

Under our previous arrangements the Local Authority had the responsibility for safeguarding partnership arrangements. That has now been extended to include the Police,
and the Clinical Commissioning Group on behalf of health. The three Safeguarding Partners have introduced regular scheduled meetings, chaired in rotation by each of the
three Safeguarding Partners, where they meet with the Independent Chair to discuss such issues as the local priorities, the structure and functioning of the Partnership, the
agenda of forthcoming Partnership meetings, the budget and any cases subject of Local Child Safeguarding Practice Reviews. This has strengthened the oversight of the
Partnership.

Barnsley recognises and welcomes the added value that Independent Scrutiny brings to ensuring that local arrangements are effective. Independent Scrutiny is a strong
feature in Working Together 2018.

The Barnsley Safeguarding Children Partnership will have the following aspects of Independent Scrutiny:

P A G E  6

BARNSLEY SAFEGUARDING CHILDREN PARTNERSHIP
GOVERNANCE ARRANGEMENTS

P
age 56

https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/services/children-families-and-education/safeguarding-families-in-barnsley/safeguarding-children-in-barnsley/barnsley-safeguarding-children-partnership/


P A G E  7

BARNSLEY SAFEGUARDING CHILDREN PARTNERSHIP
GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

INDEPENDENT CHAIR: BOB DYSON

GOVERNANCE GROUP MEETING
(WITH EFFECT FROM 1ST APRIL 2020)

BETWEEN
INDEPENDENT CHAIR

AND THREE SAFEGUARDING PARTNERS

Barnsley CCG
BARNSLEY COUNCIL (BMBC)
SOUTH YORKSHIRE POLICE

BARNSLEY SAFEGUARDING CHILDREN PARTNERSHIP

PERFORMANCE AUDIT
AND QUALITY

ASSURANCE SUB GROUP

BARNSLEY COUNCIL

CHILD EXPLOITATION
STRATEGY GROUP

SOUTH YORKSHIRE
POLICE

POLICY, PROCEDURES AND
WORKFORCE PRACTICE AND

DEVELOPMENT

BARNSLEY CCG AND 
BARNSLEY COUNCIL

DISABILITY SUB-
GROUP

 
BARNSLEY
COUNCIL

LOCAL CHILD
SAFEGUARDING

PRACTICE REVIEW
SUB-GROUP

INDEPENDENT
CHAIR

NEGLECT SUB-GROUP
 

BARNSLEY
COUNCIL

CHILD DEATH
OVERVIEW PANEL

BARNSLEY
COUNCIL PUBLIC

HEALTH

P
age 57



In Barnsley, we try to give every opportunity for the voice of children, young people and families to be heard. When possible, the Partnership
Meeting is held, at least once or twice a year in a school, academy or college and afterwards, the young people engage with members of the
Partnership to speak about what life is like for them living in Barnsley.

During 2019 – 20 we had children from Holy Trinity give presentations at the Safeguarding Awareness Week Launch Event – see extracts
below, we visited Outwood Academy Shafton and held the BSCP Meeting there in November and spoke to some of their young people
afterwards and we invited children from Greenacre Special School to the BSCP Meeting at Barnsley Town Hall in January to give a presentation
on what it means to have Special Needs, attend a Special School and what it means to be lonely. At the Launch Event for Safeguarding
Awareness Week 2019, four young people from Holy Trinity School spoke about ‘Online Safety’ and what it means to them. Here are some
extracts from what the young people said. The full transcripts can be read on the BSCP website

P A G E  8

THE VOICE OF THE CHILD

We know that the internet has been a wonderful
thing but it is not without it’s risks. We all know how
to have fun online but not everyone knows how to
keep themselves safe or how to report when things
go wrong.

The internet can be a scary place and a lot of children
and young people think that nothing can happen to
them. Young people tend to be more careful in the
real world than in the online world.

They wouldn’t go off with a stranger in the real world
but they sometimes meet someone in person who
they have only got to know online and often people lie
about their age and gender. They put fake profiles on
the internet and photos that they have cut and pasted
from modelling sites to look appealing.

Young people often say that they are older than they
are to look good and feel grown up but they are
attracting older people to talk to without thinking.

Reporting is important. Children and young people can report to an adult that they trust at home or in School.
There are organisations like Child-line, the NSPCC and CEOP for young people to report to. Parents and Carers
can get information from the Parent Zone and CEOP as well as the Police

In 2016/17, CEOP received 40,000 reports of offences against children, up 76.4% on the previous year. 1,896
children and young people were safeguarded or saved. Only 4.5% of all reports to CEOP ended in a conclusion
or conviction.

Over the past two years, CEOP have invested in new high-tech equipment to deal with the more sophisticated
side of the internet, like underground paedophile gangs working together across the world in bringing misery
for thousands of children and young people. CEOP also track and monitor the high-risk offenders including
those who travel the world as child sex tourists, especially in poorer countries where children and their families
have no choice. CEOP have reached out to millions of Children and Young People through their ‘Think u know’
campaign in Schools across the UK.

Schools in Barnsley offer internet safety sessions for Parents and Carers as well as for Pupils and Students. We
would like to encourage any Child or Young person to report any concerns to a grownup who they can trust like
a Parent, Safeguarding worker at School, Child-line, the NSPCC or the local Police and CEOP if necessary.

We wish that, as we said earlier, Parents and Carers would attend Internet Awareness and Safety sessions in
order to realise the dangers that their children face on a regular basis. Safeguarding is everyone's business.

EMILY SAID: MILLIE SAID:

P
age 58



The Barnsley Care4us Council were also represented at the Safeguarding Awareness week Launch and
a specially commissioned video was shared with the delegates at the Launch Event. Click here to watch
the video on the Children in Care and Care Leavers page on the council website.

P A G E  9

THE VOICE OF THE CHILD

The Child Safeguarding Practice Review Panel
‘Safeguarding Children From Risk of Criminal Exploitation’ – March 2020
“IT WAS HARD TO ESCAPE”

In March 2020 the National Panel published the findings of its first National Review into Child Criminal Exploitation.
The review sets out recommendations and findings for government and local safeguarding partners to protect children at risk of criminal
exploitation. It is a qualitative study of 21 cases from 17 local areas regarding children who died or experienced serious harm where criminal
exploitation was a factor.

In Barnsley we briefed our safeguarding partnership on the findings of the report and used those findings to further inform our training,
particularly around Child Criminal Exploitation and Contextual Safeguarding. We bench-marked our Child Exploitation Strategy against the
report to ensure that we are meeting all of the recommendations.

In October 2019 The Child Safeguarding Practice Review Panel announced the second National Review would be into:
“SUDI in Families Where Children are Considered at Risk of Harm”

The Barnsley Safeguarding Children Partnership have a particular interest in both the above reviews, the first, already published and
informing our training and planning around Child Criminal Exploitation and the second around Sudden Unexplained Death of an Infant,
because we have a number of incidents in the region that have prompted us to have a ‘Safe Sleep’ campaign, which will also be a particular
focus of Safeguarding Awareness Week 2020. Safe sleeping remains an area of concern and focus of the partnership.

Multi-Agency Safeguarding Training
During 2019 – 20 we delivered directly or facilitated 124 training courses to a total of 2850 delegates. This is accepted regionally as being
by far the most comprehensive child safeguarding training programme on offer.

P
age 59

https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/services/children-families-and-education/children-in-care-and-care-leavers/children-in-care-information-just4u/care4us-council/


Independent Chair

P A G E  1 0

LOCAL SAFEGUARDING CHILDREN PRACTICE REVIEW (LSPCR)
SUB COMMITTEE

The LSCPR subcommittee is chaired by the Independent Chair of the BSCP and has the responsibility for overseeing the commissioning of
Safeguarding Children Practice Reviews for cases that meet the criteria set out in Chapter 4 of Working Together 2018. It also manages
the action plans from completed reviews to ensure that all learning points are addressed in order to improve our approach to safeguarding
children in Barnsley.

Safeguarding Children Practice Reviews replaced Serious Case Reviews (SCR) and this subcommittee was known as the SCR
subcommittee under the previous arrangements for partnership working to safeguard children.

There is one outstanding SCR, Child T, from those previous arrangements. The SCR report cannot be published at this time due to an
ongoing police investigation. It is anticipated that the report will be published during the current year 2020/2021.

During 2019/2020, Rapid Review Meetings were held on two occasions to consider if individual cases met the criteria for an LSCPR. As a
consequence of those meetings the decision was taken to commission an LSCPR in both cases, Child U and Child V. Neither of those reports
were ready to be published during 2019/2020 and both are the subject of police investigations. It is anticipated that they will be published
during 2020/2021.

There was one Learning the Lessons Review, ‘Child S’ completed that was commissioned in September 2018 and completed during
2019/2020. This relates to a case that did not meet the criteria for an SCR but in which it was considered that there was learning to be
gained by completing a Learning the Lessons Review. The review was completed by an experienced Independent Author. Whilst this review
is not subject of publication, the associated action plan is being implemented.

P
age 60



Chair - Barnsley Council Public Health

P A G E  1 1

CHILD DEATH OVERVIEW PANEL

The Child Death Overview Panel (CDOP) is intended to help Barnsley’s Local Safeguarding Partnership to develop a better understanding
of how and why children die, and to inform further prevention work. It is the role of the CDOP to look at all deaths of children and young
people in Barnsley, whatever the reason, to see if there is anything that we can learn from them and anything that might help us avoid
such deaths happening in the future.

Four CDOP meetings were held in 2019/20 during which 16 deaths were reviewed by panel, to see if there were actions that could be
taken to prevent other deaths , three of which were deaths which occurred during that year.
In 2019/20 14 deaths occurred; the majority (57%) of deaths in under 18 year olds were aged under 1 year of age and 14% occurred
within the first four weeks of life (neonatal period)
In 2019/20 Child Death Review partners reviewed Child Death arrangements across the Borough and strengthen ed the functions of
the CDOP management and administration.

Reviewed road safety support to children and young people
Asthma awareness raising. Ongoing work to develop paediatric individual care plans for asthma and other conditions to share with
health care professional and others involved in care of a child as needed. ‘My Health Passport’ drafted.
Introduced a South Yorkshire wide safe sleeping steering group which is working to develop a consistent approach to communicating
key messages about safe sleeping and look to develop a regional campaign
South Yorkshire suicide themed panel held to ensure all areas have a response and contagion plan in place and review and check what
support services are available across all SY areas.
We have reviewed how we work and clearly defined what each agencies role in CDOP is. We have implemented the use of eCDOP as
a primary recording system allowing all agencies

CDOP has supported actions taken in 2019/20 to help reduce risk factors:

WHAT WE DO

WHAT WE DID

P
age 61



Chair - Barnsley Council Public Health

P A G E  1 2

CHILD DEATH OVERVIEW PANEL

Revised CDOP guidance states that the geographical and population ‘footprint’ of child death review partners should be locally agreed
and should cover a child population such that they typically review at least 60 child deaths per year. Reviewing at least 60 deaths each
year will better enable thematic learning in order to identify potential safeguarding or local health issues that could be modified in order to
protect children from harm and, ultimately, save lives. To enable the new statutory requirements to be met the four areas across SY have
come together to strengthen the pre existing regional CDOP arrangements. Together we procured a new electronic CDOP system to
allow collation of data at a Local Authority and South Yorkshire level. This allows for greater analysis and reporting of data to enable
further examination, trends and learning to be gained, in order to prevent future child deaths.

New South Yorkshire Child Death Review Arrangements have been published and are available to access on the Barnsley Council
website here.

Themed discussions have been held to review deaths from a particular cause, or group of causes, to provide an opportunity for greater
understanding and shared learning. This year the two themes have been safe sleep and suicide.

WHAT WE WILL DO - KEY RECOMMENDATIONS FOR FURTHER ACTION 2020/21:

Develop and agree a ‘Keyworker’ role that ensures families are given a single, named point of contact. This person will usually be a
healthcare professional and will act as a single point of contact for the bereaved family, who they can turn to for information on the
child death review process, and who can signpost them to sources of support.
Develop and finalise ‘My Health Passport’.
Due to the current crisis, we had to quickly develop local guidance to ensure the child death process including the rapid response
work could continue safely.
In addition to the normal scrutiny of deaths, we are also now looking for any COVID-19 or related factors. Thankfully at the present
time of reporting we have not seen any COVID related deaths for children. However, we are ensuring that testing has ta ken place
where deaths have occurred when appropriate.
Work has continued to ensure we do not fall behind in the reviewing of deaths by CDOP and meetings and processes have continued
(albeit virtually).

P
age 62

https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/media%20/11219/south%20yorkshire%20child%20death%20review%20arrangements.pdf


In 2019 - 20 we carried out three multi-agency audits so that we are able to assure the Partnership that our partners are fully aware of the
risks facing our children and young people from those wishing to try and harm them through CE. This includes on-line grooming
specifically and on-line safety in the broader sense and pressures they may face from their peers in engaging in risk taking behaviours that
might further expose them to harm.

As well as making sure the BSCP CE Strategy and Work Plan is kept up to date, the CE Strategy Group received regular reports and
updates from the Multiple Vulnerabilities and Contextual Abuse Panel, which considers some of our most at risk children and young people
and reports from the Missing Panel, that meets regularly to consider children and young people who go missing from home, the reasons
why they go missing and what we can do to try and keep them safe.

Chair - South Yorkshire Police

P A G E  1 3

CHILD EXPLOITATION STRATEGY GROUP

The Child Exploitation (CE) Strategy Group is responsible to the Safeguarding Children Partnership for overview of inter-agency working in
all areas of CE including Contextual Safeguarding and County Lines. The Strategy Group is also responsible for the development and
implementation of the Safeguarding Children Partnership CE Strategy and Work Plan.

In 2020/21 we will continue to conduct regular audits of cases where children and young people have been exposed to or at risk of CE.
We will continue to assess the local risks that our children and young people are facing, including Harmful Sexual Behaviour and we will
make sure all our partners and people that work for them are aware of what CE is and for them to be constantly vigilant so that we can
keep our children and young people as safe as possible.

WHAT WE DO

WHAT WE DID

WHAT WE WILL DO

P
age 63



Continued to offer a comprehensive training offer.
Multi-Agency Safeguarding Training - During 2019 – 20 we
delivered directly or facilitated 124 training courses to a total of
2850 delegates. This is accepted regionally as being by far the
most comprehensive child safeguarding training programme on
offer.
Continued to revise and add to our training offer in response to
need and through learning from Local and national Reviews,
Best Practice, Research or due to emerging issues or themes.
Reviewed all current policies and procedures to ensure they
remain relevant and are up-to-date and established a rolling
Tracker for review of policies

We aim to ensure we have a workforce that is supported to safeguard children in Barnsley. We strive to ensure staff are well
supported and feel confident and competent to undertake their safeguarding role. This is achieved through the provision of a
comprehensive training offer and assurance that staff are attending relevant training and achieving required competency.
Additionally, that this is underpinned by clear, comprehensive policies which are readily available for all staff to access. Moreover, that
staff have access to safeguarding supervision to support them and the caseloads they manage.
The role of the PPWPD is to ensure the above structures are in place and maintain oversight of these to ensure they remain relevant
and we are aware of emerging issues and learning

Joint Chair - Barnsley CCG and Barnsley Council

P A G E  1 4

POLICY, PROCEDURE AND WORKFORCE PRACTICE AND DEVELOPMENT

WHAT WE DO

WHAT WE DID
Continued to quality assure the training programme offered
Continued to develop a successful programme of learning for
safeguarding leads
Generated a substantial amount of income to reinvest in the
training offer
Organised several successful conferences/masterclasses
Looked at how we can evaluate the impact of training and
completed several surveys to determine this.
On behalf of the BSCP the Barnsley Safeguarding Children
multi-agency Training Programme represents one of the most
comprehensive safeguarding training offers in the country with
over 100 training courses, conferences and seminars on offer.

WHAT WE WILL DO

In 2020 – 21 we continue to look to provide the same comprehensive training programme in a virtual format until we can return to face to
face training. We will continue to keep abreast of what is happening locally and nationally in general and in relation to the impact of
COVID-19 and ensure our policies and training reflect and address any gaps.

P
age 64



One of the more vulnerable groups in society is those who either have a disability and/or complex health needs. The 
Partnership considers it very important that it continues to have oversight of this group of children and young people and that the
needs of this vulnerable group are being met.
The role of the Safeguarding Children with Disabilities or Complex Health Needs subcommittee is to make sure that partners are
working together to ensure the support needed is available for this group of vulnerable children and young people and to work
alongside colleagues and partners of the Adult Safeguarding Board to ensure appropriate arrangements are in place for when these
young people transition into adulthood, particularly with regard to relevant training.

P A G E  1 5

SAFEGUARDING CHILDREN WITH A DISABILITY OR COMPLEX HEALTH
NEEDS SUB COMMITTEE

WHAT WE DO
Chair - Barnsley Council

We carried out quarterly themed audits to give the Safeguarding Children Partnership assurance that children with disabilities and or
complex health needs receive the support they need and that appropriate plans are in place to keep them safe. We worked with
colleagues across the partnership to ensure that transition protocols are in place to support children and young people when 
they transition from receiving help and support from children’s services to accessing help and support from adult services

WHAT WE DID

We will continue to work alongside partners in both children’s and adult services to ensure
colleagues are aware of their responsibilities towards this group of children and young
people and that services are available that meet their assessed needs.
Listen to the voice of children and young people with SEND issues and support partners, to
work collaboratively to improve services for children with special educational needs and
disabilities
Develop co-production work with young people to tackle bullying, loneliness and exclusion
issues that young people have told us they want to be addressed
Work with education settings in Barnsley, young people and families to improve the daily
experience of all children with complex needs and disabilities.

WHAT WE WILL DO

P
age 65



Responsible to the Partnership for overseeing the Quarterly Performance Management Report and Quarterly Themed Audit Schedule.
Co-ordinate single agency safeguarding Section 11 self-assessment audits and analysis, monitoring agency and action plans by
reviewing summary data and determining response in respect of non-compliance and oversee the Section 175 and 157 audit process
relating to schools and outcomes.
In 2019 – 20 we undertook three Multi Agency Themed Audits and ongoing monitoring of Action Plans:

On behalf of the Partnership, we carry out regular checks of individual agencies safeguarding practice. We oversee and scrutinise key,
cross cutting performance indicators. We secure quality assurance through findings from single and multi agency audits and use this
information to improve practice across the partnership.

Chair - Barnsley Council

P A G E  1 6

PERFORMANCE AUDIT AND QUALITY ASSURANCE SUB-GROUP

WHAT WE WILL DO

In April 2019 we carried out an audit to
assess the Quality and Timeliness of
Section 47 Assessments

WHAT WE DID

In 2020 – 21 we will continue to carry out multi-agency audits to give the Board assurance that partners are doing everything they can to
keep children and young people safe in Barnsley. We will continue to oversee multi-agency audits that test quality delivered by the BSCP
Sub Groups. We will continue to scrutinise cross cutting performance indicators and measures, to secure evidence that children in Barnsley
are safeguarded.

WHAT WE WILL DO

In October 2019 we carried out an audit
into Children who are Electively Home
Educated to assess the quality of plans and
support in place to keep them safe

In March 2020 we carried out an audit into
Children on a S.17 or S.47 for the Category
of (Familial) Sexual Abuse

P
age 66



There has been a significant reduction of the impact and prevalence of neglect in
Barnsley through launching this initiative.
Everyone’s awareness has been raised to recognise the signs, symptoms and impact of
neglect for children and young people 0-18 years.
Neglect is now identified at a much earlier stage and responded to consistently,
confidently and appropriately at the right threshold of need with a timely response
The strategy developed for referral pathways and management of neglect cases in
Barnsley minimises the impact of neglect upon children and young people
Consistent multi-agency practice and approaches to neglect through training and
development have been embedded and the children’s workforce will continue to strive
to identify and mitigate the impact of neglect at the earliest opportunity
We have produced documents to help people understand and recognise Neglect,
including a guide for parents, young people and professionals called ‘Neglect Matters’

The Neglect Sub Group was established in 2017 to help tackle Neglect. We recognise that neglect is a serious problem in Barnsley. The
Neglect Strategy was launched and guidance and documents developed to support professionals and families in recognising neglect and
what can be done to help sort the problem out.

Chair - Barnsley Council

P A G E  1 7

NEGLECT SUB-GROUP

WHAT WE WILL DO

WHAT WE DID

The BSCP will continue to work with partners, including the delivery of the Graded Care Profile training, to help them recognise neglect;
support families in deciding how best to tackle neglect and improve outcomes for children, young people and families. The BSCP is
confident that neglect is now firmly on everyone’s radar and the neglect strategy embedded in working practice and that the Neglect sub
group can be retired with further work being conducted as ‘business as usual’

WHAT WE WILL DO

P
age 67



THE SAFEGUARDING LANDSCAPE IN BARNSLEY
Although the figure fluctuates slightly for a number of reasons, there are c. 52,000 
0 -18 year old children and young people living in Barnsley.

The graph shows the number of children on a plan in Barnsley as at 31 March 2020. 
There are also c. 2,890 children receiving support through early help on an 
Early Help Assessment.

If the child is in danger call the police on 999 or (01142) 202020.

If you're concerned about a child, but they're not in immediate danger, it's still important to share the information 
with us as soon as possible.

If your call is not urgent contact the Assessment Service on (01226) 772423. Our offices are open between 
Monday and Friday from 9am to 5pm.

Out of hours emergencies
If you want to report your concern urgently and our offices are closed you can contact our Emergency Duty Team on 01226 787789. 
They work on weekends and bank holidays and deal with issues that can't wait until usual office opening hours.

You can also find more information on the Barnsley Council website by clicking here.

Early help
55.3%

Child in need
34%

Looked after children
5.5%

Child protection
5.2%

LOOKED
AFTER

CHILDREN
303

P A G E  1 8

EARLY HELP
3032

CHILD IN NEED
1866

CHILD
PROTECTION

285

WHAT TO DO IF YOU ARE
WORRIED ABOUT A CHILD

P
age 68

https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/services/children-families-and-education/safeguarding-families-in-barnsley/safeguarding-children-in-barnsley/worried-about-a-child/


Barnsley Council

NHS Barnsley CCG

PCC

Cafcass

TOTAL

P A G E   1 9

FINAL POSITION 2019/20
INCOME 
£
PARTNER CONTRIBUTIONS

EXPENDITURE 
£

£86,692

£49,000

£12,024

£550

£148,266

Staffing

Professional Fees,
Supplies and Services

TOTAL

£99,576

£48,690

£148,266

It can be seen from this report of activity that 2019-20 was a busy year for the newly formed BSCP and that this work evidences the
strong partnership arrangements across all agencies and their continued combined efforts to safeguard children and young people in Barnsley
helping them achieve the best outcomes in their lives. This remains our imperative going forward in 2020-21, acknowledging the challenging
events of the global pandemic of Covid-19 and the impact on children and families. All agencies are determined to keep safeguarding children
at the forefront of their work and the Partnership operates to support them in their endeavours and to share learning and best practice to
continually improve services.

During 2020-21 the Partnership will drive forward with the strategic priorities and continue with the work of the subgroups, whilst engaging
with and listening to the voice of children and young people to reflect their priorities for keeping them safe from harm. We will learn from
Practice Reviews, locally and nationally and ensure that learning is shared widely to improve practice and procedures where required. We will
examine the quality of safeguarding work across the Partnership through our audits and information gathering and work together to address
issues and to identify gaps in service provision for children. We will develop our work to support the most vulnerable children and ,those with
complex needs and disabilities to achieve a good transition into adulthood and work with partners to provide the right help and support where
it is needed. 

The Partnership will remain vigilant with regard to emerging safeguarding issues as they affect children and young people, especially in light of
the COVID-19 pandemic situation and will respond to ensure that all agencies come together and are held to account to meet their
safeguarding responsibilities.

SUMMARYP
age 69



T
his page is intentionally left blank



  

 

  

 

1 
 

 

Item 6 

Meeting: Safeguarding Private Member Briefing  

Date of meeting: Tuesday 8 September 2020 

Report Title: Children's Social Care Monthly Report – July 2020 

Author: Matt Biggs, Business Improvement Advisor 

 

1. Background  
 
Members of the Committee will be aware that the People Directorate has a monthly children’s social care 
report, which contains an overview of the major performance indicators for children’s safeguarding and 
social care.  
 
The July 2020 edition of the children’s social care report is attached. It includes a summary section with an 
overview of performance, using RAG (Red, Amber, Green) ratings and direction of travel for most 
indicators. Barnsley's historical performance and comparisons with other local authorities are also included.  
 
More detailed information against most indicators can be found in the main body of the report, where 
members will find graphs, tables and a management performance analysis at the top of each page, which 
highlights areas of performance considered good and areas where improvement is required. 
 

2. Summary 
 
Below is a summary of key performance issues highlighted in the report. 
 
Early Help Assessments 
Trends in previous years show seasonal variations in the numbers of Early Help Assessments (EHAs) 
completed, 132 EHAs had been completed at the end of July which is 4 less than in June (136). The number 
of interventions closed in July (78) matched that of the previous month but was far lower than the same 
point in the previous year (191). 
 
Contacts 
Contacts during July (391) show an increase from June’s performance (346) as well as July 2019 (240). 
The percentage of contacts proceeding to referral decreased from 82.5% in June to 75.5% in July. 
 
Referrals 
The number of referrals rose in July to an annual high of 310, 49 higher than June and significantly above 
the average of the last 12 months (231). Expressed as a rate per 10,000 under 18 year olds, the year to 
date figure at the end of the year was 548.2; below the 2018/19 statistical neighbour (627.0) average but 
above the national (544.5) average. We continue to see a high proportion of referrals going to assessment, 
with 99.7% in July. 
 
Re-referrals reduced from 19.2% in June to 11.9% in July – also lower than July 2019 (17.8%). Our year 
to date performance of 14.7% is currently below the 2018/19 Statistical Neighbour average (19%), as well 
as the national (23%) and regional (25%) averages. 
 
Assessments 
The number of assessments undertaken has increased from 271 in June to 339 in July. The number of 
assessments in July have also increased by 57% compared to July 2019 (216). The rate of assessments 
for the year to date of 566.7 per 10,000 0-18 population is below the 2018/19 statistical neighbour average 
(734) but above the national (539.3) average. 
 
The percentage of assessments completed within 45 working days of referral remained high at 99.6% in 
July, falling from 100% in June but well above the 2018/19 national (83.1%) and statistical neighbour 
(77.2%) averages. 

Page 71

Item 6



  

 

  

 

2 
 

 

Item 6 

 
Performance for the percentage of assessments undertaken in under 20 working days has dropped from 
60.7% in June to 59.1% in July but is 20% higher than the same point in 2019. Year to date performance 
of 37% is above target (35%) and above the 2018/19 statistical neighbour (26.4%) and national (32%) 
averages. 
 
The proportion of assessments ending in no further action has increased from 15% in June to  25.8% in 
July. 
 
Section 47 Investigations 
The number of S47 investigations undertaken reduced to 110 in July from 133 in June but is higher than 
July 2019 (97). When expressed as a rate per 10,000, the year to date figure (239) is above the 2018/19 
national benchmark (168.3) as well as our statistical neighbour average (232). 
 

Percentage of S47s converting to child protection conferences increased from 26% in June to 31% in July 
and remains below the 2018/19 statistical neighbour (39%) and national (38.5%) averages. Comparing 
quarterly performance, Q1 performance (31%) has reduced for the second consecutive quarter. 
 
The proportion of Section 47 investigations ending in no further action decreased in July to 12.9% following 
an annual high of 28.6% in June. Performance for Q1 (22.2%) is more than double each of the last three 
quarters.  
 
Child Protection (CP) 
The number of children with a CP plan at the end of July (325) represents an annual high and 110 more 
than the July 2019 figure (215).  That figure equates to a rate of 64 per 10,000 under 18 year olds, above 
the 2018/19 national average (43.7), as well as our statistical neighbour (59) average.   
 
Performance remains strong for timeliness of initial child protection conferences (ICPC). The proportion of 
conferences within timescale for July is 90.9% above target (85%) as well as the 2018/19 statistical 
neighbour (79%) and national (79%) figures. 
 
The proportion of children becoming subject of a child protection (CP) plan for a second or subsequent 
time ever increased to 26.3% in July, having been much lower throughout Q1 (5.8%).  Throughout the last 
12 months, 70 children have been subject to a CP Plan for a second or subsequent time ever, equating to 
16.6%. Comparatively, performance remains below the 2018/19 statistical neighbour (21%), and national 
(20.8%) averages.  
 
9 CP plans were open for 2 years or more at the end of July, an increase from 7 in June. This equates to 
2.8% of all plans, remaining below the 3% target, but above the 2018/19 statistical neighbour (2.2%) and 
national (2.1%) averages.  
 
No CP plans lasting 2 years or more ceased in July. Year to date performance of 1.4% (5 closures) remains 
well below the 3% target, as well as the 2018/19 national (3.3%), and statistical neighbour (2.7%) averages.  
 
Performance for the timeliness of child protection reviews has remained at or close to 100% since May 
2016, with a 99.6% year to date average. This is above 2018/19 statistical neighbour (91.3%) and national 
(91.8%) averages. The timeliness of child protection visits has remained close to 100% since December 
2016, with 99.9% in July and 99.7% for the year to date.  
 
 
Care Proceedings 
The number of new proceedings cases in July (17) was an annual high and significant increase from 
performance in June. The average duration of open proceedings cases has dropped in the same period, 

Page 72



  

 

  

 

3 
 

 

Item 6 

from 28.6 weeks to 23.7 weeks.  The average age of concluding cases over a 12 month period has risen 
slightly to 35.7 weeks but is higher than the same point last year (32.9).  
 
Looked After Children 
The number of looked after children increased to 311 in July from 296 in June. Barnsley's current rate of 
LAC (61.2 per 10,000) is well below statistical neighbour average rates (102.5 per 10,000) and below the 
national average (65.0 per 10,000).  The number of children coming into care during the month was an 
annual high (27), and significantly above the number leaving (12). 
 
The proportion of looked after children with three or more placements (in the previous 12 months) dropped 
for the second consecutive month to 5.8% in July. This is below the 9.5% target, and continues to compare 
well against 2018/19 statistical neighbour (9.5%) and national (10%) averages. 
 

The proportion of children looked after continuously for 2.5 years, and in their current placement for more 
than 2 years, decreased to 55.9% in July, below the 68% target, as well as 2018/19 statistical neighbour 
(68.5%) and national (69%) averages. 
 
There has also been a significant reduction in the number of looked after children going missing. Only 5 
missing incidents were recorded in Q1 2020/21 well below the average for the preceding three quarters 
(33). Xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx 
xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx. 
 
The proportion of looked after child cases reviewed within timescales was above target (97%) at 100% for 
July and 99.1% year to date.  The proportion of LAC visits in time was 100% in July and year to date 
performance (99.5%) is just below target (100%). 
 
The proportion of health assessments for looked after children completed on time was 99.5% in July, 
improving slightly from 99% in June. Performance locally remains above the 2018/19 national (90%) and 
statistical neighbour (94.2%) averages.  The proportion of children looked after for 12 months or more who 
have had a dental assessment declined for the fifth consecutive month to 76.6% in July, as a consequence 
of Covid-19.  
 
The proportion of looked after children (aged 4 to 16 years inclusive) recorded as having a completed 
Strengths & Difficulties Questionnaire was 76.9% at the end of July, a decrease from 80.2% in June and 
below the 80% target.   
 
The proportion of looked after children with a Personal Education Plan (PEP) remained high at 100% in 
July meeting the 100% target. The proportion with a termly PEP was also high at 100% for June – 
performance will remain at 100% until the next refresh in September. 
 
Quality of Schools Attended by Looked after Children 
The proportion of looked after children attending schools rated good or outstanding by Ofsted improved in 
July compared to the same month the previous year, rising from 69.3% to 79.2%.  
 
School Attendance and Absence of Looked after Children 
School attendance and exclusion data has not been reported on for Q1, as a result of Covid-19. 
 
Adoption 
Xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx 
Xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx  With the exception of 2013/14, Barnsley's performance has remained well above 
statistical neighbours, regional and national benchmarks. 
 

Page 73



  

 

  

 

4 
 

 

Item 6 

In relation to the timeliness of our adoption processes,  against the target of 120 days between a placement 
order and a child being matched, timescales decreased significantly to 178.3 days in July, from 274.4 in 
June and 224.9 in July 2019.  
 
Care leavers  
Care Leaver performance is measured 'accumulatively', using information recorded at the last visit, relevant 
to those care-experienced young people who have a birthday within the current month. This is then added 
to the previous performance, recorded since April, and builds up over the year. Reporting for care leavers 
can fluctuate significantly due to the small numbers of young people in the cohort.    
 
Performance for July shows that 82.6% of the cohort aged 19-21 were engaged in Education, Employment 
& Training (EET). Comparatively, the data is well above the 2018/19 statistical neighbour (49.6%) and 
national (52%) averages.   
 
The timeliness of care leaver visits decreased slightly in July (95.9%) compared to June (97%) but remains 
above the measure at the same point in 2019 (94.3%).  
 
Xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx 
xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx 
 
Children in Need 
There was an annual high of 1,989 open Child in Need (CIN) cases at the end of July, an increase from 
1,841 in June and 561 greater than July 2019. When comparing against 2018/19 benchmarks, Barnsley's 
rate of 391.6 remains lower than statistical neighbours (464) but above the national average (334.2). 
 
Caseloads 
July 2020 data shows continued increases to the caseloads of the Assessment & Joint Investigation Teams 
and Safeguarding Teams, which increased for the third consectuive month (26.9 in July). Caseloads in 
other teams remain consistent. 
 

 Recommendations 
 
The committee is asked to review the attached report in a private session and challenge performance. Any 
areas for investigation or improvement can be agreed for formal detailed discussion at a future meeting of 
the Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 
 

4. Attachments/background papers 
 

 Children's Social Care Monthly Report – July 2020 
 

 Mockingbird Programme:- 
https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/services/children-families-and-education/fostering-in-
barnsley/mockingbird-programme/ 
 

5. Possible Areas for investigation 
  

 What are the priorities for children’s social care over the coming months? 
 

 Is the increase in referrals and assessments a backlog from the months during lockdown or a genuine 
increase in need? 
 

 Primary school EHA referrals increased substantially towards the end of the school year - was the 
nature of those referrals associated with lockdown or the wider impact of Covid-19? 

Page 74

https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/services/children-families-and-education/fostering-in-barnsley/mockingbird-programme/
https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/services/children-families-and-education/fostering-in-barnsley/mockingbird-programme/


  

 

  

 

5 
 

 

Item 6 

 

 Which of the agencies with low EHA referral rates are you concerned about and how will you work with 
them to improve this process? 

 

 Why is there such a significant increase in the numbere of section 47 investigations resulting in ‘no 
further action’ and how confident are you that they have all been offered appropriate support? 

 

 What learning is to be taken from those children that have been placed on a CPP for a second time this 
year to prevent it happening to other children in the future? 

 

 What more needs to be done to ensure that the target is reached for the number of children with SDQs 
and what are the challenges? 

 

 How are decisions made as to whether a child progresses to the next step of the process and how do 
you ensure that this is applied fairly and consistently? 

 

 When sharing Child Protection Reports with parents and families, what support is available so that they 
fully understand the content and the implications of the report? 

 

 Have you engaged with foster carers to see what particular challenges they faced during lockdown? 
 

 What face-to-face activity was impacted during lockdown, e.g. social work visits, family visits, court 
sessions, and how has this affected families and the service? 

 

 What benefits will the Mockingbird foster care programme bring to children in care? 
 

 What can members to do support the work of children’s social care in Barnsley? 
 

 

 

Page 75



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 77

Item 8a
By virtue of paragraph(s) 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 83

By virtue of paragraph(s) 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 119

By virtue of paragraph(s) 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Previous Meetings
	Minutes of Previous Meeting held on 9th June 2020
	Minutes of Previous Meeting held on 9th July 2020
	Minutes of Previous Meeting held on 21st July 2020

	4 Barnsley Safeguarding Adults Board (BSAB) Annual Report 2019-20
	Item 4b - Barnsley Safeguarding Adults Board Annual Report 2019-20

	5 Barnsley Safeguarding Children Partnership (BSCP) Annual Report 2019-20
	Item 5b - Barnsley Safeguarding Children Partnership Annual Report 2019-20

	6 Children’s Social Care Performance
	8 Children’s Social Care Performance
	Item 8b - CSC Monthly Performance Report July 2020 FINAL
	Item 8c - Understanding Children's Social Care Performance




